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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY.
Tuesday, 25 November, 1884,

Supply—resumption of committee.—Printing Conunittee.

—Adjouwrnment.
The SPEAKER tovk the chair at half-past
3 o'clock.
SUPPLY——LL%UMPTIO‘\T O¥ COM-
MITTEE

On the motion of the COL()l\IAL TREA-
SURER, the Speaker left the chair, and the
House went into Committee of Supply.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY, in moving
that £47,800 be granted for Hospitals and Chari-
table Allowances, said there was a small increase
in the item of hospitals generally. At one time it
was the practice to enumerate the different
hospitals, but as the endowment was given at the
rate of £2 for every £1 subscribed it had since
been considered unnecessary. It was pro-
posed to place the Children’s Hospital on the
same footing as the other hospitals. The
Lady Musgrave Hospital at Maryborough, which
was a new one, was of the same kind as
the Lady Bowen Hospital in Brisbane. There
was an increase of £100 for the Benevolent
Agylum at Rockhampton, and an increase of
£200 for Lock Hospitals. He thought that
after the proceedings of Friday last he ought
to mention that he did not consider the resolu-
tion which was then carried, on the casting vote
of the Speaker, should be regarded as an instruc-
tion to the Government to discontinue the opera-
tion of the Contagious Diseases Act, and there-
fore he asked for the full amount of £1,600.
Tor the relief boards, there was an increase of
£200 for Brisbane, and there were new votes
asked for Charleville, Cloncurry, Muttaburra,
and Normanton, of £100 each., There were no
other alterations of any importance,

The Hox. Stk T. McILWRAITH said he was
glad to know that the hon., Premier had inti-
tated— or rather he did not suppose he could do
anything else—that he intended to carry on the
system of lock hospitals.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY : So long as
we have money voted to do it.

The Hon. Sz T. McILWRAITH said he
hoped the Government would not be influenced
in any way by the vote given on Friday night.
Unfortunately he was not ; then able tobe pre';ent;
but had he been he should have supported the
Colonial Secretary in his opposition to the
motion, They had all been under the impression,
after the explanation given by the Colonial
Secretary, that there were to be some amend-
ments in the form of the Estimates; but they
could all see the clumsy shape in which that
estimate had been put. There were side-head-
ings and cross-headings, which had not the
slightest meaning whatever. There was a cross-
heading, “ Relief Boards,” which made perfect
nonsense of the whole thing.

The COLONTIAL SECRETARY : I did not
notice it.

The Hox. Sir T. McILWRAITH said that
no hon. gentleman, seeing that estimate for the
first time, could make head or tail of it. It was
simply carelessness to allow an estimate to be
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put before the Committee in that shape. He could
not congratulate the Government upon their
Estimates ; the present wasthe only attempt that
had beenmade at economy that he had seen. There
was not another department under the Colonial
Secretary that had not been increased by at
least 10 per cent., and in some cases a good deal
more ; but in the estimate for charitable allow-
ances there was a decrease of 23 per cent. He
could not congratulate the Government upon
that effort towards economy. The hon. gentle-
man knew perfectly well that the amount of
money now under consideration would be more
than spent. To practise economy in that way
did not say much for the researches that the
Treasurer had made. There was an increase of
£1,000 down for hospitals generally.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said that
the cross-heading *‘ Relief Boards” was certainly
out of place, but he had not noticed it before.
The hon. gentleman had said that there was a
diminution in the vote for hospitals; but his
criticisms fell very flat, because they ran counter
to facts. The hospital buildings votes were this
year placed in their proper place-—in the Works
Department. In that department, under the
heading ¢ Buildings,” the vote for hospitals was
included on pages 64 and 63. About £14,000 was
asked for hospital buildings there.

The Hox. Sir T. McILWRAITH said he
had taken that into consideration when he made
his criticism.

Mr. ARCHER said he did not hear the ex-
planation of the Colonial Secretary concerning
the £400 that was not down this year for the
Children’s Hospital. The hon. gentleman had
in.entioned the matter, but he could not follow

im.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said he had
stated that it was proposed to treat it in exactly
the same way as other hospitals, and not vote a
separate sum.,

The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH said the
estimmate was not a new one, as it was adopted by
the late Government. The instructions given
by him were that children’s hospitals were to be
treated in exactly the same way as other hospitals.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said a fixed
amount was voted last year and the previous
year. After a change had been made in respect
of other hospitals, the Children’s Hospital stood
alone, whereas it was entitled to stand on the
same footing as other institutions.

Mr. SMYTH said he noticed a great many
items for hospital buildings, and he wished the
Gympie Hospital could have been considered.
T%mt hospital was crowded at the present time,
and had been for the last twelve months,
with typhoid fever cases. The railway
was being extended towards Kilkivan, and
they knew that with extension of railways
came a great amount of sickness. They had
found it necessary to appoint a resident surgeon,
and he would like to have seen a sum of £500
put down for the Gympie Hospital, considering
that Gympie was the centre of a large district,
and that patients came into the hospital from
all the surrounding districts. He hoped the
Colonial Secretary would consider the claim of
Gympie to an endowment for a suitable build-
ing. He would not ask for it if it was not urgently
needed.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said thatif
it had been brought to the notice of the Govern-
ment that money was specially wanted for addi-
tional buildings for the hospital at Gympie it
would have been taken into consideration by
the Government ; but the case wasnot brought
under the notice of the Government for a long
time after the Estimates had been framed. As
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he understood the hon. member, it was not so
much because additional buildings were wanted
as because a resident medical officer had heen
appointed.

Mr. SMYTH said that was the principal
reason.

Mr. MOREHEAD asked if he understood the
Colonial Secretary to say that if it was repre-
sented to him by the member representing
any district that additional money was required
for hospital purposes the matter would be taken
into consideration? If that was so a supple-
mentary estimate might be brought down, and
he would then bring under the notice of the
Government the requirements of the hospital at
St. George.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he had
stated that every case would be taken into con-
sideration, but how it would be disposed of
depended upon the circumstances of the case.

The Hox, J. M. MACROSSAN said he
wished to know what course the Colonial
Secretary would take in regard to the hospital
at Geraldton? Money had hbeen subseribed
there, but it had not been considered by the
Government sufficient. There was no place
where a hospital was more required, seeing
that it was a town situated in the midst of
a dense scrub where fever was rife; and where
the local residents were limited in number the
tax for hospital purposes fell heavy upon
them., The people had raised some money,
but had not heen met in a proper spirit by the
Colonial Secretary. Seeing that in many other
places hospital buildings had been erected with-
out the local residents subscribing the exact sum
required by the regulations, hie thought Greraldton
was being very badly treated.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said an
application was made for the establishment
of a hospital at Geraldton, and if a reasonable
sum of money had been subscribed by
the local residents the establishment of a
hospital would have been authorised in the ordi-
nary manner; but the total sum raised was
not more than £200. He considered that double
that amount should be raised in such a rich dis-
trict. Half-a-dozen people could well afford a
larger sum than that themselves; and, consider-
ing the district and the wealth of the people, he
thought they might have put their hands into
their pockets. The proposition made by the
Government was a liberal one. He had said if a
reasonable sum was raised the Government would
supplement it by £2 to £1, and would at their
own cost erect a ward for Polynesians, by whom
the hospital would be chiefly used. That offer
was declined, and it was idle to say that people on
the Johnstone River and round about Mourilyan
Harbour could not afford more than £200. The
principle that the residents should subscribe a
fair amount had never been departed from, and
he did not feel inclined to depart from it in that
instance.

Mr. ARCHER said he could assure the Colo-
nial Secretary that the people were not as rich as
he thought. They had spent enormous sums of
money in developing the district and in buying
machinery, and with very little probability of
return for some time to come. So far from being
rich, they were really poor. He knew of many
instances in which hospitals had been erected
without the people subscribing.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY : No.

The Hown. J. M. MACROSSAN said if the
hon. member would search the recordsof his office
he would find that that had occurred. They
had frequently exceeded the regulations. He

knew that the Colonial Secretary could enferce

; the ruls if he liked, and he remembered, a few
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years ago, the same rule being enforced in regard
to schools. Every school in the North was
obliged to subscribe the full amount before the
Government gave any assistance, yet at the same
time they were building schools down south
where money was not subscribed.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said, with
respect to schools, that since the Act of 1875 was
passed the rule had been enforced. In many
Instances the Government had given money to
hospitals without a corresponding amount being
raised by local subscription, but there was no
instance where a hospital had been started with-
out the necessary subscription. It was undesir-
able to establish the principle that the Govern-
ment should bear the whole cost.  He had been
very much surprised at the people of Geraldton
not subscribing more than £200, and he repeated
that he thought they were well able to subscribe
more than that amount.

Mr. MOREHEAD said that the hon. gentle-
man stated that the people at the Johnstone
River ought to contribute very much more than
they did, considering their wealth. That state-
ment had been very properly contradicted by
the hon. member for Blackall, who put the
matter in a proper light. If there was anything
at all in the contention of the hon. gentleman,
why did not the rich people about Brisbane
contribute to the building of the hospital
there? He supposed there were a dozen in-
dividuals in Brisbane, any one of whom was
as wealthy as all the people on the Johnstone
River, yet the Premier would not ask the
people of Brisbane to build their hospital,
every shilling of the cost of which had been
paid by the taxpayers of the colony. He ad-
mitted that the Brisbane Hospital was in a
singular position, because it received patients
from all parts of the colony, and to a certain
extent therefore it deserved extra consideration ;
but the argument of the hon. gentleman that
the people of the Johnstone ought to con-
tribute in the way the hon. gentleman spoke
about would not hold water for a moment.
The hon. gentleman knew well what hap-
pened when the people working on the line
to Dalby were stricken with fever., Were
they there told that they were rich enough to
contribute towards hospital accommodation?
No ; the State at once, liberally and willingly,
provided the money. A very much similar state
of affairs existed at the Johnstone River, where
new country was being opened up. Something
like generosity—although he thought it was ounly
properly dealing with the funds of the State—
shonld be extended to outlying districts like that.
The statement of the Premier, that the Govern-
ment did not intend to put up a hospital in that
fever-stricken district because sufficient money
had not been subscribed by the residents, was
monstrous ; and the hon. gentleman ought to be
ashamed of himself for having said so. He hoped
the hon. gentleman would not receive the sup-
port of hon. members on the other side. It
behoved everyone to do what they could to
prevent further lamentable loss of life on the
Johnstone. No one kuew better than the
Premier the loss of life that had taken place;
and even if no mouney at all was subscribed, it
was the duty of the Government to put up a
hospital there,and for atime at least support it.

Mr. BLACK said the matter of assistance
to hospitals was very unsatisfactory indeed.
He had always considered that it should be
placed on some certain basis. He had made ap-
plication to the Colonial Secretary for additional
aid to the hospital building at Mackay, which
place had never received any assistance towards
the erection of that building. The accommodation
there was, as he had pointed out to the Colonial
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Secretary, altogether inadequate to the require-
ments ; and though other districts, he found,
got considerable votes towards hospital buildings,
Mackay was entirely ignored on the Estimates,
certainly not from any want of energy on his
part in bringing it forward. He would like to
get some information as to whether the hospital
buildings mentioned on page 65 were to receive
votes proportionate to the contributions of the
districts where the money was to be expended?

The COLONTIAL SECRETARY : No.

Mr. BLACK : He noticed that Cloncurry was
put down for £1,000. Were the people of that
district contributing a proportionate amount?
Then there was Charleville, £1,100; Charters
Towers, £1,000 additional; Dalby, £300; Port
Douglas, £200. He found that the Brisbane
Hospital had had about £26,000 expended on
it.  He did not object to that at all, but
he thought the time had arrived when there
ought to be some distinet understanding as to
what distriets really were entitled to hospital
accommodation. Bundaberg was put down for
£1,000 ; Dalby had a previous £1,500; Port
Douglas, £2,000 ; Toowoomba, £9,500 ; Warwick,
over £4,000. Perhaps the Colonial Secretary
would say on what principle aid was given ?

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said the
whole question was on a very unsatisfactory
footing ; there was no definite system at all
about it. It had been the practice lately to a
great extent to make grants to hospitals with-
out any corresponding subscriptions from the
residents.  Of course, the annual vote was
supplentented by subscriptions ; but in addition,
during the last five or six years particularly, the
Government had given additional sums for
buildings. For instance, in 1879-80, the House
voted £1,500 for that purpose. In 1881 the
only supplementary vote of that kind was an
additional grant of £1,000 to the hospital at

Maytown. In 1882 there were several large
sums  voted, including £1,000 to Hughenden,

£250 to Roma, and about £830 to Townsville,
In 1882-3 there was an increase. There
was given to Brisbane, £1,000; to Too-
woomba, £760; to Bundaberg, £600; to Towns-
ville, £500; Maryborough, £500; and other
places. In 1883-4, Warwick got £1,000; Cook-
town, £120 ; Brisbane (Sick Children’s Hospital),
£300; Ipswich, £1,700; Cunnamulla, £1,000;
besides other sums, such as £1,500 to Calrns,
£2,500 to Herberton, and £2,500 to Townsville.
Those amounts were voted specially. It was
very desirable, no doubt, that the matter should
be placed on some satisfactory basis. He had
gone on this principle since he had been in office :
that where it was really shown that a hospital
was necessary in a district, and the in-
habitants showed by their subscriptions that
they were mnot trying to throw all the
burden on the Government, assistance was given.
The Hospital Act provided for the establish-
ment of a hospital when it was proved to the
satisfaction of the Governor in Council that the
inhabitants had made provision for carrying it on.

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN said that
other places had been treated in a different
way from that in which the Premier pro-
posed to treat Geraldton. The people had
subscribed all they were able to subscribe. The
hon. gentleman seemed to have an idea that
because a few wealthy selectors owned land there,
on which they did not reside, the people should
be able to subscribe more. 'The hon. gentleman
was punishing the people who were the only
residents of the Johnstone River—the working
men employed by those rich selectors in clearing
the land, planting the cane, and doing all the
work necessary for bringing the land under
cultivation, Those were the people who had
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actually raised the money, with the addition of
a few selectors who were actual residents. He
was assured by the gentleman who commnu-
nicated with him on the subject that they
had raised all the money they could raise—£200
or £300, he was not sure which ; he knew it was
£200 some monthsago. Yet, in the face of that,
and knowing that the district was a fever-
stricken one—more so, perhaps, than any other
district in Queensland—the hon. gentleman
stood upon a regulation which, by his own
admission, had been repeatedly broken, and
refused them any assistance. He was sure
that if the hon. gentleman had thought for one
moment of the actual necessities of the case,
and got rid of the idea that the people were
wealthy, the principles of humanity would
actuate him to put a hospital there, even if it
was only a small one. Timber was plentiful, and
it wonld not take more than £1,000 to build a
hospital—four or fve times the amount raised
at the outside—which would be the means of
saving the lives of many valuable colonists, The

istrict was a fever-stricken one, and would be
much more so now the wet season was sefting in.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said he was
very much surprised that he had not received any
communication from the people at Geraldton.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : Because you
refused them.,

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said the
inhabitants had not given hini to understand that
they could not raise more money.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said that
they had communicated with him after their
communication with the Colonial Secretary ; and
on his representing the matter to the Colonial
Secretary he was told that more money must be
raised. .

Mr. BLACK said he should like to know the
reason that the requirements of the Mackay
Hospital had been ignored. The hon. gentleman
had had a communication from the secretary of
the hospital on the subject.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY : When?

Mr. BLACK: Three or four months ago;
long before the Estimates were framed.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY : No; long

after.

Mr. BLACK said in that case the Hstimates
must have been framed long before he supposed.
He should be satisfied if the hon. gentleman held
out any reasonable hope that the claim would be
considered when the Supplementary Estimates
were being framed. The Mackay Hospital had
never received any consideration at all from the
Government.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said it
seemed to be rather a singular way of looking at
the matter, that because one town badly wanted
money for a hospital it should be given to all the
towns in the colony. Surely they were not to
adopt the principle of dividing a sum of money
ratably amongstall the towns in the colony ! The
(Government must ascertain where money was
wanted before they could allow it. The hon.
gentleman had said that his (the Colonial Secre-
tary’s) attention had been called to the require-
ments of Mackay. The hon. gentleman had
given him some information after the Estimates
were on the table of the House; but that was
the first intimation the Government had received
on the subject. They had not an unlimited
amount of money to dispose of, and they had
to deal with the most urgent cases. If the
Mackay Hospital had a good caze to make
out, of course it would be taken into consideration
the same as any other. It was hardly the proper
way to raise a question of that kind now for the
first time.
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Mr. PALMER said he wished for sonie ine
formation with regard to the relief boards. Four
places that had mot heen on the list before
were down for £100 each. He would like the
Colonial Secretary to inform him what condi-
tions were attached to the grant. There was
no hospital at present at Cloneurry or Norman-
ton, though he was glad to see by reference to
page 65 that provision was made for building a
hospital at each of those places. The subserip-
tions of the inhabitants showed that they were
rcally in earnest in their desire to have hospitals.
He thought they had subscribed mnearly £600
towards the Normanton one, and also very
liberally at Cloncurry. He would like to know
the conditions attached to the £100 grants.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said that
the relief board vote was really a poor vote.
The money was entrusted to the hospital com-
mittee for distribution, and where there was not
a hospital committee it was entrusted to the
police magistrate to relieve cases of real distress
which were always to be found in the colony.

Mr. MELLOR said that with regard to the
vote of £100 for Gympie he hoped the Colonial
Seeretary would see his way clear o increase
it next year. He had been assured that the
whole of the funds there had been expended.
As to the other matter of additions to the hos-
pital, he trusted the Colonial Secretary would
place £500 on the Supplementary Kstimates, as
he knew that it was very much required. The
hospital had Dbeen full nearly the whole year,
and they wanted additional accommodation, not
only for the resident medical officer, but also to
increase the ward accommodation, which was
insufficient at the present time.

Mr. JORDAN said he trusted that after what
had occuwrred on ¥riday mnight the Colonial
Secretary would not entirely ignore the resolu-
tion passed by the House. He understood that
the lock hospitals could not be dispensed
with at once, and therefore it was not his inten-
tion to take any exception to the vote for
that purpose. He was sorry that the only
expression on the part of the Colonial Secre-
tary had reference to the resolution passing
Dby the casting vote of the Speaker. They
had nothing to do with the fact that it
was passed by the casting vote of the
Speaker; it was now the resolution of the
House. The feeling generally on the subject
in the colony justified him in urging that the
compulsory examination of the women should be
suspended in the meantime, until there had
been further expression of public opinion on the
whole question.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said that he
had stated distinctly, in moving the vote, that
he did not see his way to act upon the resolution
of the House. If a majority of the Committee
decided to vote money for six months only they
would take the matter out of the hands of the
Government, but if they did not the Government
would continue to carry on the lock hospitals on
their present basis.

Mr. JORDAN said he wanted to be satisfied
on the point whether the compulsory examina-
tion would be continued or suspended. After a
similar resolution had been carried in the House
of Commons the compulsory examination of
women was suspended until the Repeal Bill
should be passed.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he assumed that the
law would be administered until the present Act
was repealed.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said they
sarely could not expect the Government to act
on a resolution come to by the casting vote of
the Speaker in a House in which only thirty were
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present out of fifty-five members. He for one,
had he been present after the speech of the hon.
the Colonial Secretary in reply to the hon, mem-
ber for South Brisbane, although his mind was
not made up previously, would have voted
against the resolution. The hon. the Colonial
Secretary placed the matter in such a clear light
that no person having the interests of humanity
at heart could do otherwise than vote for the
continuation of the lock hospitals. Was he
to understand, in regard to the Geraldton
Hospital, that if the people up there satisfied
the hon. Colonial Secretary “that they had
raised all the money which they were able to
raise, he would reconsider the case ?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said the
hon. member apprehended him quite correctly.
He had expected for some tine past to reccive
a communication on the subject, and he would
be glad to receive any communication from
there.

Mr. FOOTE asked if there were no excep-
tions to the rule of giving a relief vote for distri-
bution, unless there was a hospital commmittee
or a police magistrate ? There was a commmittee
of ladies at Tpswich who had given their atten-
tion to that kind of work, :md he thought the
money might be safely entrusted to them for
distribution.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said there
had been two exceptions in his time.

The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH said they
were often made before.

Mr. FOOTE said there could be no objection
to making a third exception in the case he had
referred to.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he had
not heard of an application being made from
Ipswich in his time.  Exceptions to the rule had
been made in the cases of Brishane and Mary-
borough.

Mr., FOOTE : And Toowoomba.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said he was

not quite sure, bubt any application would be
considered.

Mr. MOREHUIAD said he sincerely hoped
no money would be handed over to a number of
ladies in Ipswich to expend. He took it that
the rule was that, under relief boards, where
the money was not given to a hospital com-
mitttee, it was given to the police magistrate for
distribution. That was the case in Brisbane,
and also in other places. He hoped the
hon. Colonial Secretary would not entrust the
expenditure of any money to ladies at Ipswich,
however charitable they might be, who were not
responsible, even if he had made an exception in
two or three other places. The money in any case
should be handed over to some body of which
one member was a Government official.

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN said there
was a vote for a new Lady Musgrave Hospital at
Maryborough., Was that of the same descrip-
tion as the Lady Bowen Hospital at Drisbane ?

The COLONTAL SECRETARY : Yes.

The Hox. Sz T. McILWRAITH said he
did not think the question of those ladies in
Ipswich who had been referred to had been
before the Government for a long time, and he
hoped that the hon. Colonial Secretary would
not give up his common-sense judgment in the
matter in deference to the pleading of the mem-
ber for Bundanba.

The COLONIAL SE TARY said that
the hon. mewber for 1 )lll](l’lnbd, had simply asked
him if an applicstion of that kind would be con-
sidered, and that he had sald “yes”

15si-5 8
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Mr. FOOTE said that an application had
been made for a grant of money to those ladies
at Ipswich to the previous Government, and
that the application was made with the knowledge
that exceptions had been made in the case of other
places, and therefore they could not see why an
exception should not also be made in the case of
Ipswich. However, the late Government could
not see their way clear to make the grant; he
presumed they did not intend to see their way
clear. The hon. the leader of the Opposition
would like to obtain the promise of the Colonial
Secretary that the matter should not be consi-
dered ; but he must remember that he had lost
his influence in the meantime, and that it might
be some time before he got it back again.

Mr. GROOM said that a sam of £300 was
dispensed by the ladies of the Benevolent Society
at Toowoomba. That money had been trans-
ferred over to them at the request of the late
Police Magistrate {Mr. Cribb), who desired to
be relieved of the duty on the ground that he
was not in a position to judge of the merits of
the cases brought before him. The majority
of the cases were of wives deserted by their
husbands. So far as his experience went he
thought the money was very well spent indeed.
In addition to the £500 voted, they managed to
collect about £100 from local residents, the whole
of which they disbursed in a most satisfactory
way. 'They were better able to judge the cases
of distress brought before them than a committee
composed entirely of gentlemen, on account of
the greater freedom with which applicants for
relief could make their cases known.

Mr. MOREHFEAD said he could quite under-
stand Mr. Benjamin Cribb, or any other police
magistrate, being desirous of getting rid of any
work for the doing of which he did not receive
any special emolument. It was never intended
by the Committee of the House, in voting that
£300, that it should be dispensed by an irres-
ponsible body of ladies, who would, no doubt,
be delighted to perform acts of charity at
the expense of the State. Those sums were
voted by the Committee, with the intention that
the controlling power over them should remain
in the hands of a body who were responsible for
their proper expenditure. If there was anything
in the argument of the hon. member for Too-
woomba, why not malke it apply to Brisbane?
Had the Committee known that such a state of
affairs existed at Toowoomba, they would not
have so cheerfully voted the money.

Mr. GROOM : The change was effected many
years ago.

Mr. MOREHEAD saild the fact was now
made known to the Committee for the first time,
and he sincerely trusted the Premier would not
allow such a state of affairs to continue. Proba-
bly the present Police Magistrate at Toowoomba
would be both willing and able to undertake all
the duties which his position devolved upon him.
At any rate he hoped such instances would not
be multiplied, and would insist that all relief
grants should be dispensed by persons responsible
to the Government.

Mr. GROOM said he had not quite correctly
stated the case. The money was not placed
absolutely in the hands of the Police Magistrate,
but in the hands of the hospital committee, of
which the Police Magistrate was chairman. The
change was made at his suggestion, many years
ago, and had ever since worked admirably. The
money was not disbursed by an irresponsible
body. The grant was sent half-yearly to the
hospital committee, and by them transferred to
the ladies” account in the bank, and for the
disbursement of the money they rendered an
account to the committee, who thus exercised
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a check over them. They certainly made £100
8o a very great way, and their labours in connec-
tion with the expenditure of the vote were worthy
of all praise.

Mr. MOREHEAD said the case might almost
be called one of misappropriation of public
money. The money was voted for a definite
purpose, to be dispensed by definite individuals,
who had no right whatever to delegate it to
another and an irresponsible body. The transfer
bad been illegal from the commencement. While
not disputing that those ladies had been very
careful and had distributed the money in a very
proper way, still he could not help repeating that
it enabled them to practise cheap charity at the
expense of the State. They had not to put their
hands into their own pockets. They had the
patronage of £300 which the Committee voted to
another and quite a different body, who, in the
trinsfer, had all along been guilty of an illegal
act.

Mr. MACFARLANE said the money was
handed over to hospital committees for the relief
of poor persons, but he believed that if the
returns were called for it would be found that
in the majority of cases it went into the
general hospital funds. It was certainly never
voted for that purpose, but in nine cases out of
ten it would be found that that was the fact. A
board of ladies would dispense the money a
great deal better, and would make £100 go as
far as others would make £200; and a ladies’
commiittee for that purpose should be appointed
in all places to which those grants were given.
They would get far better value for the money
than at present.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he was beginning to
see a little light thrown upon the question. The
hon. member had just told them he believed
that the money which had been voted for the
relief board of Ipswich had gone to the general
purposes of the Ipswich Hospital. Was not the
hon. member for many years a member of the
hospital committee there, and wasit not a fact
that he had recently been rejected from it? It
was impossible that the hen. member should have
made the discovery since his rejection, and he
ought to tell the Committee whether whathe had
stated was correct, or merely a supposition,

Mr. FOOTE said the hen. member (Mr.
Macfarlane) was for many years a member of
the Ipswich Hospital Committee, and did very
good service when upon it. He himself (Mr.
Foote) had also a pretty good idea of how
the money went, and it was very greatly
owing to that reason that he had brought
the matter forward now, and in previous
sessions. During the time of the late Govern-
ment many attempts were made to place the
dispensing of the vote within the powers of the
Ladies’ Benevolent Society, especially as it was
known that other similar bodies in the colony
were receiving grants for charitable purposes.
As to the ladies practising cheap charity at the
expense of the State, nothing could be further
from the fact. They collected funds, divided
districts into wards for their special purpose, and
by making careful inquiries into the cases of all
applicants for charity were able to expend the
money entrusted to them in the best manner
possible. The Ipswich society held periodical
meetings, at which reports were read showing
how the money subscribed had been distributed,
how many people were found in a state of desti-
tution, and so on. The society there had been
doing very good and valuable work, and, what
was more, they had done it without one shilling
of Government money. Application had been
made to transfer the present vote to them,
and he believed they were the proper body
to be entrusted with the expenditure of it.
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The vote was not intended to be applied to
hospitals generally. The societies of which he
had been speaking were acquainted with many
cases of destitution that arose from different
causes ; some from drunkenness, some from sick-
ness, some from accident, and some from other
causes ; and it was very necessary that institu-
tions of that sort, instead of being spoken of
deprecatingly, should be encouraged, and he did
not see why they should not receive assistance.
If the money were handed over to the ladies’
benevolent ingtitution, and a proper account
rendered of it, it would give more satisfaction.

Mr. SMYTH said that, looking through the
various items, he found that some towns were
especially favoured. The town of Ipswich re-
ceived £400 a year, while there were other towns
of equal importance that did not get anything
like that amount. He noticed that Rockhamp-
ton had a benevolent asylum that received £400
last year, and which was to receive £500 for the
present year. For Maryborough, he found there
was a jump of from £200 to £400. He thought
that the basis of population ought to be con-
sidered in the matter.

Mr. FERGUSON said he could tell the hon.
member who had just sat down that Rockhamp-
ton was differently situated from any other town
in the colony; it was the only town that had a
large district behind it, which was not supported
by any relief fund, exeept through Rockhamp-
ton. Ipswich, Toowoomba, and Warwick re-
ceived the money for their own purposes,
but Rockhampton had to supply relief to a
large district. He believed that the ladies’
benevolent societies were the only ones
which put the money to the right use for which
it was intended by Parliament. The money
used to go to the Police Magistrate at Rock-
hampton ; but he never had time to attend to
the work as it ought to have been, and it was
now paid over to the Ladies’ Benevolent Society,
which had to meet regularly before any amount
was passed. When an application came in, a
committee of one or two was appointed to see if
the relief applied for were really necessary, and
unless it were assistance would not be given.
With regard to Rockhampton, the public there
were so well satisfled with the working of the
society that they had subscribed £350. The hon.
member for Ipswich was quite right in saying
that the sum ought to be given to the ladies’
benevolent societies.

Mr. BLACK said he wished to know some-
thing with respect to the reason why the vote for
Maryhborough was increased from £200 to £400.

Mr. ANNEAR said he considered that the
vote for Maryborough was a very small one
indeed. The hon. member for Gympie stated
that the amount should be given on the basis of
population. Maryborough was the second town
in the colony so far as population was concerned.
The hon. gentleman had referred to Rock-
hampton ; but seeing that Brisbane was down at
£1,600, Roclthampton received the very small
allowance of £500. No doubt there was a very
large back district there; but therve was also a
large back district at Maryborough, which only
received £400, and when the money was handed
over to the Ladies’ Benevolent Society, which had
been recently formed there, he was certain
that the money would be well spent and not
one shilling misappropriated. The ladies of
the town had taken up the work warmly, and
the money was better spent than previously.
The hon. member for Gympie had no right to
complain of the vote for Maryborough. The
people of Brisbane, and those of Gympie, where
there was a large mining population, contri-
buted less than any in the colony towards
hospital purposes. A few years ago the miners
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contributed nothing whatever ; but lately, since
special appeals had been made to them, they had
been more liberal.

Mr. MELLOR said he took exception to
what the hon. member for Maryborough had
said with reference to Gympie. Gympie had
always been to the fore in supporting hospitals.
There was no institution better supported in the
colony than the Gympie Hospital ; and an addi-
tional amount should be given. There had been
an exceedingly heavy run upon the funds this
year, and they had been completely exhausted.

Mr. MOREHEAD said that, judging from
what had fallen from the hon. members for Mary-
borough, Ipswich, and others, one would think
they had better let a lot of old women come and
deal with the question. They had Dbeen told by
the hon, member for Toowoomba that they were
very much better financiers and economists than
men were, and would make 10s. go where a
man would spend £1.  They had better have
an old woman as Treasurer—he was not saying
they had not one at present—but perhaps the
best thing would be to get an old woman from
one of the benevolent boards to rule the finances
of the colony. He maintained that the vote
had been obtained under false pretences. He
was sorry that in a great many cases the societies
were sectarian Dbodies. The hon. member for
Bundanba might deny it ; but he would repeat it.

Mr. FOOTE gaid the hon. gentleman did not
mean what he was saying. He had just had a
spell, and they must excuse him.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he wanted to know
whether the Premier was not going to reply to
what was stated by the hon. member for Gympie?
Why should the amount for the relief board be
doubled in the case of Maryborough when no
other town received increases 7 On what system
were those sums of money apportioned—if there
was any systemn at all ?

The COLONIATL SECRETARY said he had
been trying to get an opportunity to reply.
Tvery town, he thought, ought to be rather proud
of the smallness of the amount voted for the
relief board. The amounts placed on the Hsti-
mates were according to what was understood
to be required, and where there were changes it
had besn represented that the amount voted was
really insufficient. They could not keep down
pauperism, unfortunately ; but after inquiry as to
the real amounts required for the purpose, the
Estimates had been framed accordingly. He
was glad to see that so many of the larger towns
asked for so little.

Question put.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said before
the amount was passed he would take the oppor-
tunity of saying a word or two with regard to
the charges brought before the House in regard
to the operation of the Contagions Diseases Act
the other night. He had caused inquiries to
be made as far as it was possible to identify
the cases referred to. One case had been
particularly referred to and could be clearly

identified, and that was the case of two
young girls who were charged with being
prostitutes. He had received a memorandum

from the Police Magistrate, and he had also
the evidence taken in the case, which he
would be willing to show to any hon, member,
He might say that, at the conclusion of the case,
the Police Magistrate said to the girls, ““T con-
sider the case against you fully proved, but as
Mr. Stewart, the city missionary, has taken
you in hand I will discharge you; but let
me inform you that the senior constable will
keep a sharp lookout for you and bring you
up again if you do not behave yowrselves.”
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That was the case in which Mr. Stewart had
intervened and engaged a solicitor to defend the
girls, and anyone reading the evidence would see
that it was as strong a case as could possibly be
made out. The other case in which girls in
service had been proceeded against was also
reported on. They were brought up for the
reason that they were seen by the police to fre-
quent brothels. Whether they got out unknown
to their mistress he did not know, but they
actually frequented brothels, It was right that
those cases should be mentioned again, because
the rumour of the kind that had been men-
tioned was unfair to the police, and gave the out-
side public a wrong impression of the working of
the Contagious Diseases A.ct.

Mr. MACFARLANE said a great deal of
stress was laid on the cases mentioned by the
Colonial Secretary, but to his mind the report he
mentioned went for nothing. They knew that
in many instances innocent girls had been perse-
cuted in England and elsewhere, and where a
policeman was once concerned in a case he did
his best to prove it. That was well known.
There were hundreds of girls who suffered
through the anxiety of the police to prove their
cases. He had intended to refer to the matter
under the next vote, when the item for lock hos-
pitals and fees to medical men was under discus-
sion, and he would reserve what he had to say
until then.

Question put and passed.

The COLONIAT, SECRETARY moved that
the sum of £3,645 be granted for Medical Officers.
New officers had keen appointed at Cloncurry,
Muttaburra, and Normanton, and there was an
increase of £50 to the medical officer at Cook-
town., That was in consequence of the increased
work., A greater number of vessels now came
down the coast than formerly, and the medical
officer at Cooktown also attended at the Leper
Station. There were no other increases.

Mr. MACFARLANE said hon. members of
the Committee would observe that the vote was
under six different heads—namely, * Vaccina-
tion, medical attendance on gaols, immigrants,
police, lock hospitals, and aborigines.” He
wished to ask the Colonial Secretary for informa-
tion in regard to vaccination. The medical
officers advertised that a charge of 2s. 6d. would
be made to ensure a child being brought back
again after vaccination. They charged 2s. 6d.
besides the fee that the Government paid them,
and he would like to know whether it was an
extra. There was an allowance for attendance on
gaols, but gaol-birds did not as a rule require
much attendance; and the police, he noticed, had
a sum of £200 put down for medical attendance.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY : Those are

places where there is no medical officer.

Mr. MACFARLANE : Then there was at-
tendance on aborigines ; but, as far as heknew,
very little was done in that way. The half of
that vote, therefore, came under the heading of
‘Immigrants, vaccination, and lock hospitals” ;
and as the whole of the vote for lock hospitals
was for the purpose of examining the girls, he
thought that, as a protest against that system and
a continuance of the Act—although the resolution
against that examination was only carried by
the casting vote of the Speaker—a portion of the
whole vote, say £5C0, should be left out. He
did not object to the last vote, because he
thought it was quite right that some allowance
should be made for lock hospitals, in order that
those girls should be restored to health; but he
objected to the examination, and therefore, as a
protest, he should move that the sum be reduced
hy £500.
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Mr. JORDAXN said he would maintain his
cousistency on that question by voting for the
amendinent.

The Hox. Stk T, McILWRAITH said that
surely the hon. member was not going to main-
tain his consistency to the extent of absurdity!
The hon. member for Ipswich said he had no
objection to the lock hospital, bhut he objected
to the other thing. The hon. member would
not gain his object by what he was doing. Out
of the whole amount a very slight proportion
went to the lock hospital ; and to strike off the
sum the hon. member named would throw the
whole arrangements out. If the hon. gentle-
man wanted to take objection to anything in
connection with the lock hospital, he should
have done so on the last item.

Mr. MACFARLANE said he quite approved
of the vote for lock hospitals ; but the sum now
before the Committee was for the examination of
girls, which was quite a different thing., That was
why he wanted to make a protest against it, and
Le thought that was the proper place to raise the
question. If he could not succeed in reducing
the whole sum, he would try to reduce the
several items for the four largest towns where
the Contagious Diseases Act was in foree.

The COLONTIAL SECRETARY suggested
to the hon. member that, if his object was to
test the question, he should take, at Brisbane,
the salary of the medical officer, and move
that that amount be reduced.

Mr. MACFARLANE said he had no objec-
tion to try with the Brisbane vote. He would
therefore ask leave to withdraw his amend-
ment.

Amendment, by leave, withdrawn.

Mr, MACFARLANE said he saw that the
amount for Brisbane was £300, and he wounld
move that it be reduced by £100.

Mr. BEATTIFE said he would point out to the
hon. member thathe wonld not attain his ohject by
such an amendment. There was a large amount
of work for the medical officer in Drisbane to
perform, besides attending to the girls; and the
hon. member would take away the opportunity
that those unfortunate girls had of being cured.
He hoped the hon. member would not persist in
his amendment.

Question—That the item for Brisbane be
reduced by £100—put, and the Cowmittee
divided :—

Aves, 8,

Messrs. Orimes, Brook Alellor, Jordan, Annear,

White, Higson, und Macfarlanc,
Noks, 23.

Messrs, Norton, Avcher, Sheridan, Miles, Diekson,
Grifith, Groon, Macrossan, Black, Morechead, ILalor,
Isambert, Stevenson, Beattie, Kellett, smyth, Foote,
Tissner, Palner, Ferguson, Bailey, T. Campbell, and
Dutton,

Question resolved in the negative.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN asked the
Colonial Secretary why it was that the salary
of the medical officer at Cooktown had been
advanced from £150 to £200, whilst that of the
medical officer at Townsville remained £150 7

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he
admitted that the salary of the medical officer at
Townsville should not be less than that of the
nmedical officer at Cooktown ; but his attention
had not been called to the matter when the
Hstimates were being prepared.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN : Will the
hon, member rectify it on the Supplementary
Tistimates ?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY:
are any.

If there
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Mr. SMYTH called the attention of the
Colonial Secretary to the inconvenience o which
the travelling public were subjected by the
quarantine regulations. In going to Mary-
borough he had been stopped on two different
occasions in the river until the medical officer
came down from Maryborough, With many of
the passengers, if theymissed the afternoon train
to Gympic it would enforce a delay of two days ;
and he could not see why the exanination
should not take place within half-a-mile of the
town instead of eight miles away. Of course it
could not be expected that a medical oflicer
with a salary of £200 a year could give all his
time to waiting for the steamers.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he saw
no reason why the exawmination should not take
place close up to the town; and, had his attention
been called to the matter, instructions would
probably have been given to that effect. Ile
would have the matter attended to next day.
The provisions which had heen adopted were
the same as those previously in force when
smallpox was prevalent in the other colonies.

Mr, MOREHEAD said the point raised by the
hon. memberfor Gympiesuggested another matter
in connection with the quarantine regulations.
He had come from Sydney in the * Governor
Blackall,” which carried passengers for Mary-
borough, Bundabery, and Rockhanpton. On
inquiry he found that, after having been passed
at Brisbane, the boat was stopped for examina-
tion at each of those ports, a proceeding which
seemed rather absurd. Surely after the
ship had been passed as clean at Sydney
and Brisbane, there wus no necessity to delay
the passengers at the other ports!  Another
incouvenicnece in connection with quarantine
was exemplified on the samne trip.  The steamer
came in twenty minutes after sundown, and was,
for that reason, detained twelve hours,  He was
told—whether correctly or not he could not
say—that in Melbourne and Adelaide passengers
were passed by lamplight, and it might be pos-
sible to adopt the same system here. A deten-
tion for twelve hours at Liytton was never very
pleasant, and it was all the more disagreeable
to be stopped when one was so near his desti-
nation,

The COLONTIAL SECRETARY said he had
always understood that examination for small-
pox by lamplight was perfectly futile. With
regard to the examination at several ports, it had
to be remembered that the medical examination
was not proof of the non-existence of disessc on
board, but only that it had not exhibited itself
at that time. 1t might break out in the interval
of afew days; and the fact that there was no
probability of infection being conveyed to one
port was no reason why every precaution should
not be taken to prevent another from being
infected.

Mr., MOREHEAD sald he quite admitted
that every precaution should e taken; but if
there was any force in the hon, member’s argu-
ment, seeing that the steamers ran pretty rapidly
from Sydney to Rockhampton and back with the
same crew, the same argument ought to lead to
examination at every port on the way down.

Mr. BEATTIE said that the hon. member for
Gywpie had stated that he saw no reason why
vessels should not bhe passed very wmuch nearer
Maryborough than they were at the present
time. 1If that was necessary at Maryborough,
where any of the vessels going there could go up
to the wharf at any time, why should the
saane rule not be applied vo Brisbane, where they
wete apt to be detained at the bar for twelve
hours waiting for the Health Oicer?  Sometinies
vessels coming up the river were detained by want
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of water, and under such circumstances passengers
could not of course get up 3 hut it was different
if they were detained to wait for the Health
Officer. At any rate they might be examined
nearer the town than at present, when although
a vessel had plenty of water to come up the
river she was compelled to anchor outside the
bar, and through that delay sowmetimes lost a
tide.

Mr. FERGUSON said the regulation was
very annoying to shipowners, and to the public
as well.  Yor instance, at Rockhiampton, where
there was no bar to navigation, they had to
anchor at Lake’s Creek. Sometimes, when a
steaer arrived, the Health Otficer would be
engaged elsewhere, and he knew of a case where
the captain steamed on and blew his whistle
for half-an-hour for the Health Officer to
come on hoard. And when he did appear the
Health Otficer ordered the captain to steam back
while he rode overland to Lake’s Creek and met
the ship there. A number of passengers were
thus put to a very great deal of inconvenience, as
well as the owners of the ship, If the Colonial
Secretary would give instructions that all ships
might be allowed to come up to the town and
remain in the river till the Health Officer came
on hoard, it would be a great convenience and no
harm would be done,

Mr. MORKHEAD sald he would illustrate
to the Colonial Secretary the absurdity of stoj-
ping vessels at such points of the coast as
Maryborough and Rockhampton. Supposing
that a man was anxious not to be inspected
nrore than once or delayed, and that his destina-
tion was Maryborough or Rockhampton, and
that his starting point was Sydney. He would
come to Brisbane and leave the steamner therve,
and go on board another steamer whose point
of departure was Brisbane. That vessel was
not examined at Maryborough or Rockhamp-
ton, and yet he mivht be as dangerous as
if he had come all the way in the steamer in
which he originally started. It appeared to him
that all steamoers after passing Brisbane might
be passed at the other ports.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said that the
exanination of passengers by those steamers was
more with the object of giving confidence to the
public than actuslly with the expectation of
keeping out disease.  He said that from the way
in which the examination was made. He had
undergone the examination during the last two
months several times, and a greater sham he never
witnessed than that examination, both here and at
Sydney. At Sydney, numbers of people did not
know that they had Deen examined, as the
doctor had simply walked past them and counted
their nuinber. The doctor here was perhaps a
little more particular, but that was all that
could be said. TIf the Government and the
medical profession thought they could keep out
smallpox by examinations conducted as those
were to which he had referred, they were mis-
taken. He suppased it was to give contidence
to the public, otherwise the examination might
be dispensed with.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said that
that was news to him. Certainly the examina-
tion was made for the purpose of keeping out the
disease. It was believed to be a precaution, but
not an absolute prevention. It was the only one
that they could take. He was very much sur-
prised to hear what had been said regarding it.
The last time he had been examined was by the
late Dr. Challinor, several years ago, and it was
very thorongh. When the regulation was issucd
he had inquired of the Health Officer as to the
nature of the examination, and that gentleman
had described to him the procedure, which cors
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responded with what he himself had undergone
formerly, and he had given instructions to the
Health Officer to carry out the sane system as
had been done formerly,

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN said he had
never been examined by Dr. Challinor, but cer-
tainly the same thing could not be said of the
other otficers,

Mr. ANNEAR said the public would have as
much confidence if the examination were made
half-a-mile from Maryborough ax at Dundathu.
At the present time Dr. (’Connor had some-
times to remain a whole day at Dundathu
when four or five steamers came in in one day.
Most of those steamers had passed at Drishane,
and he did not see the necessity of examination
at Maryborough, hecause some of the passengers
had previously arrived in Brisbane from Sydney.
It was a great demand on the time of Dr.
(’Conmnor, who only received £200 a year, whilst
it would not pay him if he had £600, if he had
to stay the whole day at Dundathu. He hoped
the Colonial Secretary would allow the steamers
to come up nearer Maryborough, say to within
half-a-mile of the town.

Mr, HIGSON said he hoped the concession
would be given, for he did not see what difference
there could bein having the examination in the
river at Rockhampton and at Lake’s Creek.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said that
when the matter was brought to his notice some
time ago the disease was believed to have been
stamped out, and the examination was on the
point of being discontinued, so that it was
thought scarcely necessary to make any change.
When it appeared again the same system of
precaution was adopted, but he intended to take
immediate steps to alter the present system,

Question put and passed.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY moved that
the sum of £650 be voted for the service of the
year for the Central Board of Health. Hon.
members would see that there was an increase
in the Istimates for fees to the extent of
£200. That had been rendered necessary
by the passing of the new Health Act.
The Health Officer at Brishane, Dr. Wray, who
was also Inspector of Orphanages, had been
appointed Secretary to the Central Board of
Health at a salary of £400 a year; and an
Inspector of Orphanages had been appointed who
would devote the whole of his time to the duty,
which would be very onerous. If the subject
of health was to be dealt with in a satisfactory
manner it was quite clear that there should be
some competent officer of the board, who should
collect information and give assistance to the
local authorities,  Dr. Wray had been relieved
of his duties as Inspector of Orphanages; and
and it was thonght that the proposed arrange-
ment would work satisfactorily. The work
connected with orphanages had largely increased,
and required a separate officer to take charge
of it. The salary intended was, as he had
before stated, £400 ; but the amount asked would
cover the expenditure until the expiration of
the current financial year,

Mr, MOREHEAD said that would be a con-
venient time for asking the Colonial Secretary
whether the rumour was true that Dr. Taylor
had been sent home at the expense of the State
on some special mission, and if so, what that
mission was?

The COLONTAL SECRETARY replied that
before Dr. Taylor went home he called upon
him, and offered to collect certain sanitary infor-
mation for the Government in England, He
(the Colonial Secretary) told him he should be
extremely obliged for any information he might
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colleet, and he believed he wrote him a letter
requesting him to doso. That was the extent
of the accuracy of the rumour.

Mr. MOREHEAD: Has he received any

emolument ?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY replied that
nothing was said on the subject of emolument,
although no doubt if Dr. Taylor were put to any
expense he would probably make some claim to
the Government.

Mr. BEATTIE asked the Colonial Secretary
if he would kindly take into consideration the
case of the late Secretary tothe Board of Health,
whose services had been dispensed within conse-
quence of the changes in that department. That
officer had been sedretary to the board for
twelve years, and he had never heard of any
com{)laint against him in that capacity. 1t
would be a pity to put him out of employment
after such a length of service.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY replied that
the matter was under consideration, but at
pfjsent there was not a suitable vacancy avail-
able,

Question put and passed.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY moved that
£3,250 be granted in aid of Public Institutions.
He proposed to omit the last item, ‘ School of
Arts, Thursday Island, £400.” Some time since,
he promised a deputation from Thursday Island
that he would place that sum on the Estimates
for that purpose ; but, more recently, application
had been made to establish a State school there.
That building would cost £1,000, of which £200
had been subscribed by the inhabitants. Con-
sidering the very small number of children on
the island, the school building might very well
be used for the purposes of a school of arts in
the evenings. The item of £250 for the School
of Arts at Bowen was asked for under exceptional
circumstances. The former school of arts was
blown away by a cyclone, and the people there
asked for a special vote to help them to erect
another, which he gladly promised them.

Mr. PALMER said Bowen seemed to have
heen treated with exceptional favour. Why
should not another £100 be given to the Norman-
ton School of Arts?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY : It has not

been blown away.
Mr. MOREHEAD : Raise the wind !

Mr. PALMER said he could not understand a
building being blown so entirely out of existence
that no part of it could be utilised.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said there

was nothing left of it ; it was blown clean away.

Mr. PALMER asked if any gratuity could be
given for the purchase of books for schools of
arts, supposing extra local subscriptions for that
purpose were raised, even if the original grant
exceeded £2007

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said it was
especially stated in the foot-note that no grant
should exceed £200.

Mr, NORTON said he could not see why
Bowen should get a grant of that kind more than
any other place. At Gladstone, for instance,
the people were suffering from the effects of as
bad a drought as there had been in any part of
the colony. They had not even a school of arts,
but used for the purpose a part of the Town
Hall. Gladstone was entitled to extra help as
well as Bowen.

My, MOREHEAD asked if the amount of
the vote—£250—would not be £1 per head for
gvery man, woman, and ¢hild in the place?
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The COLONTIAL SECRETARY said the
population must be greater than that, judging
from the number of children who attended the
public school there.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said that
Bowen had not been very well looked after by
former (Governments, and as the place had been
twice devastated by cyclones, he thought the vote
might well be allowed to pass without opposi-
tion.

Mr. MOREHEAD said it should be a sine
g4 non that the new school of arts should be built
cyclone-proof. Bowen had been visited three
times during the last fifteen years by cyclones,
and it might be visited again, for the place did
not seem specially popular with Providence. He
hardly agreed with the vote, although he did not
intend to oppose it.

Mr. ¥ERGUSON said that, in giving Bowen
£950 because its school of arts had blown down,
they were establishing a bad precedent. If an
accident occurred to any other school of arts, the
supporters of it would have a right to ask the Gov-
ernment for a grant for the erection of a new one,
He did not think that because a school of arts
was blown down it was any reason why the Gov-
ernment should give an extra sum. There were
towns in the colony where there had never been
a school of arts at all, which had just as much
right to have one as Bowen ; it would be estab-
lishing a bad precedent.

Question put and passed.

The COLONTAT: SECRETARY, in moving
that £30,100 be voted for Miscellaneous Ser-
vices, said that the first item of £5,000
was an additional sum for the steamer to
replace the s.s. ‘“ Kate.” They had already
voted £13,000 ; the contract being £18,000, which
would cover all the expenses that would be
incurred. The lowest tender that came in, in
accordance with the specification which was sent
home, was £25,000; but he believed they would
get a very good vessel, with a speed of eleven
knots, for £18,000; she ought to besailing at
about the present time. There wasan additional
sum of £7,000 asked for the gunboats, £060,000
having already been voted for them. The amount
for fire brigades was the same as usual; for
foreign interpreters there was a slight increase.
The expenscs of elections were very much less, as
there was a general election last year. The suin of
£3,000 was asked for Kuropean telegrams, and
the amount for horticultural and agricultural
societies was increased by £1,000. The votes for
the Acclimatisation Society, loans to cemeteries,
relief of aboriginals, and to the Society for the
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals were the same
as last year. In addition to the items he had
mentioned there was a sum of £1,000 for a
memorial to Captain Cook at Cooktown. It was
well known that Cooktown was the place where
Captain Cook beached the “ Endeavour” on the
wonderful voyage he made round the world. If
any hon. members had taken the trouble to look
at the book of his voyages they would see an ad-
mirable drawing of the Endeavour River; and
the spot where the ship was beached could easily
be identified. Theyv ought to ercct a monument
there. In New South Wales, they had one at
Botany.

Mr. MOREHEAD : A large amount of the
money was subscribed by the public.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said that
there ought to be some mark set up before the
place was occupied in any other way, and if hon.
gentlemen thought £1,000 was too much he was
He thought it was a very
small amount, and they ought to be ashamed
of themselves for not having dome anything
already. Heknew some hon, gentlemen opposite
had no wsthetio tastes, o
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Mr. MOREHEAD : I don’t admire yours !

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he
also asked for £1,000 for Mrs. Macalister,

Mr. MOREHEAD : Does the Minister for
Works support that ?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said that
Parliament voted a pension to the Hon. A.
Macalister of £500 a year ; but he drew it for
only two years. The services he rendered the
colony were well known, and he left absolutely
nothing behind him,

Mr. BLACK said he would ask the Colonial
Secretary if the Government had any scheme
for a memento to Captain Cook ; what was it to
consist of—was it to be an obelisk or a statue?
The vote was altogether insufficient for the
purpose of putting up a memorial commensurate
with the requirements the Colonial Secretary
sketched out. He trustedit would be an embodi-
ment of the sesthetic tastes the hon. gentleman
referred to, and would not take the shape of the
monument they might sea outside the window.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he was
afraid the hon. gentleman did not do justice,
when he referred so disparagingly to that statue,
to one who was, to the time of his death, one
of the greatest sculptors of the day. For the
amount that was asked no very elaborate monu-
ment could be erected ; but he thought a sub-
stantial obelisk might be obtained,

Mr. ARCHER said the Colonial Secretary had
asked if anyone had taken the trouble to read
¢ Captain Cook’s Voyages”

fThe COLONIAL SECRETARY : That part
of it.

Mr. ARCHER said that anyone who did not
read them must be differently constituted from
most people, for anything more interesting was
almost impossible. He had not only followed
Captain Cook’s footsteps in Australia, but in
other parts of the world as well. He did not,
however, see why £1,000 should be voted just
now. If the Ministry could show a surplus next
year, he should be glad to vote five times that
amount, and they could have a memorial that
was worthy of the man, He did not only look
upon Captain Cook as the greatest navigator,
but also as one of the greatest men who ever
lived; but the matter of the monument had
better be postponed until they could do some-
thing worthy of the man.

Mr. MOREHEAD said he could not think
that the Colonial Secretary was in earnest in
putting the item on the Estimates, He must be
joking with the Committee. Surely he did
not believe for one moment that there
was any necessity for putting up a statue
to Captain Cook so long as Australia lasted!
Surely Australia was a monmmnent without
spending £1,000 on a paltry obelizk! The thing
was absurd, and it was childish to ask the
Committee to vote a sum of money for any
such purpose. Would it raise Captain Cook
in the estimation of the world? The continent of
Australia, and a large portion of Oceania, was a
living monument to that man; but if it was
insisted that they should spend £1,000 on a
monument, perhaps some sculptor could chip
the statue in front of the building in which
they were sitting into some rvepresentation
of the great navigator. But the whole thing
was a farce. The reason that the statue of
Captain Cook was put up in Sydney was because
it was the oldest settlement in Australia;
and further, it was not a movement in any
way initiated by the Government. It was
initiated by Sir Alfred Stephen and others whe
raised subsecriptions, which were afterwards
supplemented by the Government, If people
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were desirous of erecting a monument to
Captain Cook, let them do so; but he did
not see that the State should be called
upon to expend money in that direction.
He fully agreed with the hon. member for
Blackall, in saying that Captain Cook was the
greatest of all navigators and one of the greatest
men that ever lived ; but to spend £1,000 on a
statue to perpetuate his memory seemed to him
absurd, as everyone knew all about him. As
to whether members of the Opposition were
msthetic or not, that was a question upon
which the Colonial Secretary was not competent
to judge.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said he
thought the fact of the landing of Captain Cook
wag a matter of very great interest in the
history of Queensland, and a statue, he thought,
should undoubtedly be erected to his memory.

Mr. MOREHEAD : But not at Cooktown.
The COLONIAL SHCRETARY said the

hon. member’s argument amounted to saying
that all statues were objectionable, and perhaps
pictures also.

Mr. MOREHEAD: The hon. member is

assuming too much,

The COLONTIAL SECRETARY said the
hon. member’s argument led to that. He said
that everyone knew all about Captain Cook, but
he (the Colonial Secretary)did not thinkthey did,
and it would at all events be desirable to mark
the fact of his having landed at Cooktown.
People seeing Cooktown for the first time might
regard it as an out-of-the-way place, but seeing
the statue there would be reminded of its
historical interest. There was no place in Queens-
land that possessed such an amount of historical
interest for Queenslanders to be compared with the
place where Captain Cook landed. Was it worth
while to mark that place? He thoughtthey
might spend £1,000 very wisely in that way,
but other hon. members thought differently.

The Hon. J. M. MPFCROSSAN said he
agreed with the Colonial Secretary in thinking
that they ought to do something to com-
memorate Captain Cook’s landing at Cooktown,
but he did not think £1,000 was sufficient.
They could get nothing for that sum worthy
of the man or the colony. It was a paltry
sum, and would not carry out what the Colonial
Secretary had in his mind. If they wanted
to erect some monument to Captain Cook he
thought they ought certainly to mark the spot
on which he beached the ¢‘Endeavour,” if pos-
sible; but if they wanted to really mark his
landing at Cooktown as an historical event of
Queensland they ought to erect an obelisk on
Mount Cook, which would be seen by every
vessel passing down the coast. Quite indepen-
dent of the circumstance mentioned by the hon.
member for Blackall, he thought any probability
of a deficit next year should not atfect their
vote this year. He believed a larger sum than
£1,000 should be voted, but he should support
the vote asked for.

Mr. ARCHER said he had stated that if there
happened to be a large surplus next year a much
larger sum might be voted. No man was more
anxious than himself to commemorate the landing
of Captain Cook, or do honour to his wonderful
voyage. He would recommend the Colonijal
Secretary to bring in a Bill to prevent
people altering the names that Captain Cook
gave to the various places he discovered.
That was a thing he was happier in than
any other—the appropriate names he gave—
Cape Capricorn, for instance, which was just
under the line, and Great Sandy Island. Now
they had wretched paltry pames substituted for
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those places, and Great Sandy Island was called
Fraser’s Island.  If the names given by Captain
Cook could be preserved, that would indeed be a
menument o him which would last for ever.

Mr. NORTON said he could see no reason
for voting the money this year. Fe quite ad-
mitted tht had been said about the greatness
of Captain Cook, but he could not sece why
they should erect a monument to his memory at
the present time, A worse time could hmdly be
chosen. The country had been suffering for
many years past ; all branches of mdu@my had
been affected, and were now existing under very
great dl%adenta.ffes A thousand pounds was
therefore a ma.tter of some moment under the
circumstances. The present was one of those
times when it was necessary to cut off all un-
necessary votes from the Iistimates ; and that, he
considered, was an unnecessary vote. Whilst he
agreed vuth the propriety of at some time erecting
a monument to Captain Cook, he did not thinic
it should assume the form pwposed ‘What
would Captain Cook, or any other great
navigator, desire that his memory should be
perpetuated by ? Would he not rather prefer a
lighthouse to a stone monument ? He (Mr.
Norton) thought, if a monument should be
erected at all, there could be no more fitting
monument than a first-class lighthouse, et
them have something like that ; but unless
the lighthouse was wanted at the present
time he should vote for the omission of the
item from the Estimates, and before sitting down
would move that the vote be reduced by £1,000.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said that
he did not by any means intend to say that for
£1,000 a statue to Captain Cook would hbe
erccfed but he thought they ought to mark at
Cooktown—the place where ke landed and
remained for a considerable time—that he was
the discoverer of that portion of Australia. He
admitted that the sum was inadequate ; hut he
hoped that a much better monunent than the
one now proposed would in time be erected.
The proposed memorial would show that Cook-
town was the place which Captain Cook, having
heen wrecked inside the Barrier Reef, succeeded
in reaching, and there vepairing his ship, and
being enabled to get home. Had he been unable
to find that port, there was no doubt he would
never have been heard of again,

Mr. ARCHER was understood to say that he
was glad the Premier acknowledged that the
sum was inadequate for a ﬁtting monument.
There wag already a monument in the South
Seas recording his death, so that if the proposed
memorial were erected there would in one part
of the world be a monument to his death, and
in another part a memorial of his life. Ie
thought the item had better be omitted this year
at least,

Mr., SMYTH said he thought it would be a
mistake to bury £1,000 at Cooktown by erecting
a memorial where it would never be seen. They
should erect the memorial in Brishane, if any-
where, g0 that all visitors to the colony would
see it. In New South Wales they had placed
Captain Cook’s statue in Hyde Park, and
not at Botany, where he landed, and where
nobody would have scen it. It would be
better to erect a memorial hospital, or found a
Cook’s Coilege; to put up a statue at Cook-
town would simply be throwing money away.

Amendment put and negatived.

Mr. BEATTIE said he saw an item—*Two
gunboats—additional sum, £7,000.” Ie was
not going to raise any objection to that;
but he wished to have a promise from the
Premier that money would be put on some
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estimate to provide for the mnaval brigade
which it was proposed to introduce. He
understood that when the Defence Bill passed
it was the intention of the Government
to take steps to organise a mnaval brigade,
and he wished to point out to the Colonial
Secretary how easily that would be accomplished.
On the previous night an invitation had been
issued through the Press to young men willing
to join the bu gade, with the result that, in one
day, there were about tifty applications. Thir ty-
five men had put their names down at a meeting,
and fifteen sent apologies for non-attendance.
He was sure it would be very satisfactory
to the hon. the Colonial Secretary to see
that he would have no difficulty in getting
the requisite number of men. A naval brigade
would be of very great advantage to the colony,
and he hoped the Colonial Secretary would give
the Committee an assurance that the money would
be provided. The matter was one of vital impor-
tance at the present time when the defences of
the colony were being discussed.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said he had
already given an assurance of the intention of
the Government to make provision for the estah-
lishment of a naval volunteer force. He was
very glad to learn that so many persous were
ready to join the foree.

Mr. STHEVENS said that, in connection with
the item of £300 for interpreters, he would like
to ask the Colonial Secretary whether an inter-
preter had yet been appointed for the Beenleigh
district?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said that
none had yet been appointed.

Mr. STEVENS said that the last interpreter
resigned some months ago, and the inhabitants
of the district were anxiously looking for the
appointment of someone to take his place.
There were a great many Germans in the district,
many of whom spoke very little English, and they
suffered great hardships when they had cases
at the police conrt. There was seldom a German
magistrate on the Dbench, and when a sharp
lawyer was employed they were completely at
his mercy. Great failures of justice sometimes
resulted from there being no one to make the
magistrates understand the cise.  He hoped the
Colonial Secretary would not let much more time

elapse before appointing an interpreter.

Mr. NORTON said that there was another
item of which he intended to move the omission
—the grant of £1,000 to the widow of the late
Hon. Arthur Macalister, At the time when
it was proposed to grant a pension to Mr,
Macalister he was one of those who opposed
it. Xe did not believe in his receiving a grant
at all ; still less did he believe in making a grant
to the widow, He did not mean to say that he
had no sympathy with the lady ; but he thought
the time was come when there should be an end
to grants of that kind uwnless some good reason
u)nld be shown for making them. 1fe did not
think any good reason could be shown why the
grant should be made. He did not believe in the
manner in which Mr, Macalister had obtained
the appointment of Agent-Gencral, nor in the way
in which he conducted the business of that otfice.
He did not believe that his acts were such as
to induce members of the Committee to make a
special grant in recognition of his services. He
did not think Mr., Macalister had rendered any
special services to the country, and there was no
reason why the Committee should make a special
grant. He proposed the omission of the item—
% Grrant to the widow of the late Hon. Arthur
Macalister, C.M.G., £€1,000.”

The COLONTIAL SECRETARY said he did
not believe as & general rule in making grants to
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persons from the public funds. But whenever
they found a case like that of the late Mr.
Macalister, who for more than twenty years had
served this colony with the result of entirely
impoverishing hiwself, and leaving absolutely
nothing for his family, he thought Parliament
would not do any harn if they followed the ex-
ample proposed to be set that night. The case
was one not likely to arise very often. It was
in 1860 that Mr. Macalister first became a
member of the Parliament of Queensland, and
before then he had been a member of the Parlia-
ment of New South Wales. During the whole
of that time he had occupied a very distinguished
position—first, as a Minister in 1863, and from
that time to 1876 he was either in the posi-
tion of the leader of the House, or Opposi-
tion, or holding important office.  They all
knew that Mr. Maealister had rendered many
oreat services to the country, and that no man
had suffered so much in his own private and
pecuniary affairs ashe had done, because of those
gervices, All that had been pointed out less
than two years ago, when a pension had been
voted to Mr. Macalister and as they would have
willingly paid that pension for years to come, s0
he hopedthey would grant the sum now proposed
to his widow.

Mr. NORTON said he hoped he would have
some help from the other side of the Committee
in preventing the passing of the vote. Were
they going to grant a pension or allowance to
every man who had occupied a prominent position
in the House, or to his widow? During a great
portion of the time that Mr., DMacalister
occupied that position he was well paid for
his services. It was quite true he might have
lost by giving up his private business to enter
the House ; but he (Mr. Norton) did not know
that the country was now bound to recoghise
that. He believed that was the chief ground on
which the pension was voted after Mr. Macalis-
ter’s retirement ; but surely that was no reason
why they should now pass a vote to Mrs,
Macalister ! If Mr. Macalister chose to give
up his private practice to occupy a position in
Parliament, there was no more reason why
they should recognise his services in the way pro-
posed than they should recognise the services of
other men who had occupied similar positions for
several sessions of Parliament. My, Xlacalister,
it was true, served long as a Minister, but for the
whole of that time he received a salary as such,
and at the time when he probably thought he
was about to Jose that position he appointed
himself Agent-General. 1In doing so he thonght
Mr. Macalister had shown that if he neglected
his private business in entering Parlinment, he
was, when the time came when he must retire,
very well able tolook after himself. He (Mr,
Norton) objected to the vote, and he hoped he
would have help from the other side of the
Committee in expunging it from the Estimates,
If he received any support at all he intended to
carry his amendment to a division, and he
trusted it would be carried.

Mr, JORDAN said he hoped the hon. member
for Port Curtis would not get a vote from thas
side of the Committes. He did not think so.
Than the Hon. Mr. Macalister no man had
rendered more valuable services to the colony.
They all knew that he did so at a sacrifice of
his private practice, which was very lucrative,
before he devoted himself to the services of the
country with an ardour and disinterestedness
which distinguished him almost beyond any man
who had had anything to do with the public affairs
of Queensland. He (Mr. Jordan) had had the
hononr of being a member of Parliament the
first wession when Mr, Macalister also sat there,
and he had remarked the consistency and
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firmnoss of his conduct of public affairs, and
his self-sacrificing devotedness to the interests
of the colony. He did not think that Mr.
Maculister had appointed himself as Agent-
General.  He was appointed nnder very peculiar
circumstancos,  His health had failed because of
his devotion to the interests of the colony; he
had become a poor man, and when he was told
that he must remove to England or to Europe
for a year or two he was appointed Agent-
General ; and a worthy representative of the
colony he had made., When the House granted
him a pension he might have been spared for o
number of vears, but he died shortly after, and
now they were asked to grant Mrs. Macalister
£1,000. He sincerely hoped nomember on his side
of the Committee would support the hon, mem-
ber for Port Curtis in moving the rejection of
that grant.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said he
thought that Mr. Macalister’s case deserved
much consideration. That gentleman had been
a prominent man in the House when able men
were very scarce. The population was very
small, and it was not over-burdened with public
men of talent, and yet Mr. Macalister had sacri-
ficed his business and devoted himself to the
service of the public. For that reason he had
voted very gladly for the pension, When the
colony of Victoria started into existence as an
independent colony, with a representative Parlia-
ment, one of the clauses of the Constitution seb
apart £3,000 for the first members who would
serve for two years as Ministers: and a portion
of that money was still being drawn. It was
nothing unusual in the colonies to recognise the
gervices of men who had been a long time in office,
and who had, to a certainextent, been remunerated
by salary. No doubt they would have cheerfully
paid Mr, Macalister’s pension if he had lived
for many years, but unfortunately he died
immediately after the pension had been voted.
He did not think that they were doing very
much wrong to the country, or establishing a
very bad precedent, by voting £1,000 to Murs.
Macalister. He did not think she could have.
been left very well off, and the Committee
might very well and very gracefully vote the
sum. So far as he was himself concerned, he
would have voted for a larger sum.

Mr. GROOM said he could not quite go so
far as the hon. member for South Brisbane in
the eulogium he had passed on Mr. Macalister,
Decause the facts of that gentleman’s political
career did not fully bear it out. But there was
a well-lknown proverb which told them to speak
nothing but good of the dead, and he intended
to hear that in mwind on the present occasion.
It would be a very graceful act on the part of
the Committee to recognise in that way the good
Mr. Macalister did to the colony, and it would
come with a still better grace if the item were
voted without opposition. He hoped the hon.
gentleman would withdraw his amendment, or,
if he did not do it spontaneonsly, that theamount
of support given him would he so small as to in-
ducehimto withdraw it. That Mr, Macalister did
good service to the colony everyone would admit,
notwithstanding that, like every other public
man, he committed great political errors—ervors
arising from defective judgment rather than
from any other cause. The amount was a com-
paratively small one, and it might very well be
voted without opposition,

Mr. NORTON said he saw no reasonable
grounds why the vote should be passed. Mr.
Macalister, shortly before leaving the colony,
was told by his medical men that he required
change of air, and wmust go to Murope. Mr.
Macalister did so, and appointed himself Agent-
General while at home,
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The COLONIAL SECRETARY : No.

Mr. NORTON : He appointed himself Agent-
General before he went.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY : No, no !

Mr. NORTON said he might be wrong ag to
the details, but that was the actual result of
what took place. Of course Mr. Macalister
could not appoint himself ; but still the appoint-
ment was made in such a way as to jussify
people in saying so at the time. The colony did
not want men in ill-health to serve it in that
capacity, but men of activity and strength. Not
long ago, a number of hon. members on the other
side expressed their intention of voting against a
number of increased items on the Hstimates,
The one now under discussion was a totally un-
necegsary item. He was not swayed by the
speeches of the hon. members for South Brishane
and Toowoomba. He had formed his judg-

ment on the matter long ago, and had
seen no reason to alter it. It was argued

that the grant should be given because Mr.
Macalister had for a long time occupied a public
position ; but were they going to form a prece-
dent which would lead to similar treatment being
accorded to every man who had occupied a public
]ﬁ)sition in the colony ? There were men in the

ouse now—and he said it without the slightest
hesitation—who had done just as good services
to the country as Mr. Macalister. Xven if his
own friends felt they could not support his
amendment, he expected that hon. inembhers on
the other side, who were 50 anxious to keep down
the expenses of the colony, would give him such
help as would enable him to carry 1t.

Mr. MIDGLEY =said he understood the posi-
tion of the late Mr. Macalister to have been,
that at an early period of the history of the
colony he entered political life, and ultimately
attained a position of prominence as a political
leader. There had been men who had entered
the Queensland Parliament in years gone by,
who had rendered good service to the State, but
who had never been In office, nor ever received
any remuneration for their labours. Probably
it was as great a tax on their private means to
render those public services as it ever was to M.
Macalister ; but there had never been a proposi-
tion made to grant pensions to those men, or to
make provision for those whom they left behind
—probably equally as needy. The special reason
urged in favour of the grant was not one that
had much weight—that was, that Mr, Macalister
only drew his pension for a very short time.
On page 3 of the Estimates there was a long
list of pensions which the country was paying
to a number of individuals who sesmed likely
to live almost for ever, and those pensions were
likely to come to a very large amount in the
aggregate. He noticed there the name of the
Hon. W. Thornton. Mr, Thornton only drew
his pension for two years, yet there was no
proposition made to give his widow a grant of
£1,000 on that account. The facts of the case
with regard to Mr. Macalister had not been fully
stated. That gentleman took the position of
Agent-General when the salary was £1,000 a year,
and he had not held it long when it was increased
by 50 per cent. He should like to vote for the
grant if he possibly could, but he saw no justifi-
cation for it. If anything was to be voted at all
it should take a different shape. It would be
better to make some permanent provisien for Mrs.
Macalister in the form of a small pension. If the
item went to a division he should vote against it.

Question—That the item of £1,000 be omitted—
put and negatived.

Mr. PALMER said he wished to make a few
remarks with regard to what was said by the
hon, member for Mackay about the extraordinary
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way in which the Estimates were made up. He
could not fathom them. There was one item,
““Repairs and additions to country court-
houses and police buildings,” and on referring
to page 65 he found the saime work was carried
on by another department. Why could they
not be put in one list, so that people could
understand ? The amount asked was only £2,000,
however,

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said the
reason why the Hstimates had been prepared in
that way for many years was, that allapplications
forrepairsto court-housesand police courts cane to
the Colonial Secretary’s Department, whilst all im-
portant buildings, such as those which had to be
supervised by the Colonial Architect, were under
the Works Department. A great number of small
things were coming in from week to week, which
it was not considered worth while to trouble the
Works Departient with ; they were frequently
done by the police. Therefore, it had been the
practice to take a general vote in the Colonial
Secretary’s Department to cover those small
items. In one place, painting was required ; in
another, fencing ; another, spouting, and so on.

Mr. NORTON said, with regard to the last
vote, that hehad intended to put te a division
the amendment he proposed. He had expected
that there would have been a better expression
of opinion from the other side of the Committee,
but as there was only one member in favour of the
amendment who spoke, he did not think it worth
while towaste the time of the Committee by calling
for a division. He was sorry that those gentle-
men who professed to be so anxious to economise
should exhibit the same spirit of increasing the
expenditure of the country as the Government
did.  With regard to the loans to cemeoteries, he
would ask the Colonial Secretary if it was the
custom of the trustees of cemeteries who had
horrowed money from the Government at differ-
ent times, to repay that money in instalments as
they were supposed to do? He wished to know
if the money were repaid at all.

The COLONTAL SKCRETARY said he
made the same inquiry a little while ago in the
department. He believed the trustees of ceme-
teries had been very irregular in their payments,
and no strictness had been exercised. A circular
had been sent calling upon them to repay the
loans, as they had undertaken to repay them,
and he believed some of them intended to do so.

Mr., NORTON said he understood that as a
matter of fact the loan was equivalent to a gift.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY : No.

Mr. NORTON said that, if the trustees did
not choose to pay up, the money might as well be
given at once. Although the trustees might be
willing to repay it, in most cases they had not
done 50. All the money they received had to be
expended in other ways.

The COLONTAL SKECRETARY ; There are
some cases, 1 know.

Mr, SMYTH said the hon. member for Port
Curtis stated that his amendment had received
no support from the Government side of the
Committee. The hon. gentleman would have
found more than one member who would have
supported him had he gone to a division. The
hon. gentleman might state that he had received
no support from his own side, as the only mem-
ber who spoke from that side spoke against the
amendment,

My, NORTON said the hon. gentleman was
quite right. He had intimated that although he
might not receive support from his own friends
he was entitled to some from the other side.

Mr. ARCHER said that he had only once
had anything to do with cemeteries, and that
was when he asked for an advance of £80; but
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his friends were so honest that they refused to
sign a bond, because they knew they would never
be able to pay.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said that
last week he received a letter accompanied by a
cheque, which was the result of the circular.

The Hox, J. M. MACROSSAN said he did
not see how the trustees of cemeteries could pay
that money back again. All the money they
received was from fees for burials, and the more
unhealthy the district the more chance there was
of its being repaid. The money ought not to be
expectedd to be repaid; it was ounly imposing
upon the conseiences of people, such as the hon.
member for Blackall referred to, who were so
honest that they did not wish to sign a bond that
they could not pay. It was a good thing that
they were not able to pay, because there were
fewer burials.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said that
the money was borrowed under the provisions
of the Cemeteries Act.

Mr. GROOM said he was going to point out
that no provision for loans was made in the
Cemeteries Act. The Act simply said that the
provisions of the Act should be administered
by trustees appointed by the Government, and
that provision would be wmade, out of the con-
solidated revenue, for carrying out the duties
imposed upon trustees. By the Act of 1880,
passed by the hon. member for Mulgrave—the
Local Works Loan Act—the trustees of ceme-
teries received those sums annually from Parlia-
ment, and provision was then for the first time
made for repayment. Before that time—in 1879
—owing to the position of the colony, it was
proposed to strike out all grants to schools of
art, agricultural reserves, and cemeteries, and
it was on a motion made by himself that some
of those votes were restored in a modified
form after the matter had been fully discussed
in committee. It was not until 1880 that it
was suggested that all loans to cemeteries for
the future should be brought under the Public
Works Loan Act. Prior to that Act passing,
grants were made continually, and trustees
were neither asked to pay nor called upon to
pay, nor had they paid any sums prior to that
date. Speaking of the cemetery in his district,
he might say that they borrowed money prior to
1880, which they had never repaid, for the reason
that the hon. member for Townsville pointed
out. They were not in a position to repay.
How were they to repay unless they had some
great epidemic in the district that would give
them an increase of revenue ? He entirely agreed
with the hon. member for Townsville, that, as
prior to 1880 a great many who borrowed had
not been called upon to pay, all trustees should
now be exempt. In all Inglish communities
some respect was shown to the last resting-place
of the dead. God’s-acre had always been re-
garded as a most sacred spot; and he thought
small sums could well be granted for fenecing in
the ground and for other purposes, so that stray
cattle, dogs, etc., might be kept out. If the
Colonial Secretary would name the cemeteries
from which repayments had been made, it would
be found that higher charges were made for
erecting tombstones, or else that the places were
extremely unhealthy. There was some force in
what had been advanced by the member for
Townsville that those sums should be gifts.

Mr. NORTON said he was glad to hear the
hon. member speak as he had done. If Too-
woomba was not in a position to pay, no other
part of the colony could. Last year the death-
rate at Toowoomba was greater than in any other
part of the colony; and therefore, according to
the hon. member’s showing, there ought to be a
good income,
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Mr, GROOM : We have an expenditure.

Mr. NORTON said he thought the hon.
member was quite right; but when gifts
had been made, the trustees should not be
expected to repay the money. He had an
interest in putting his question a short time ago.
He asked the Colonial Secretary to give £100
towards a cemetery in his district, the trustees
of which wanted to fence in their ground. He
thought he could get it as a gift, but was assured
by the hon. member that it could only be ad-
vanced as a loan. He was aware of the fact that
a great mavny did not repay borrowed money ;
but in writing to his constituents to say that the
hon. gentleman had promised £50 on loan he
did not like to tell thewr that other people were
in the habit of not repaying. Under the circum-
stances, when some trustees repaid and others
did not, he thought they might as well wipe out
all debts. In the case he mentioned, although
the sum was so small, he was sure, if the money
were to be repaid, it would not be from the
cemetery itself ; it would have to be raised by
private subscription among the people.

Mr. MACFARLANE said there was an item
of £100, for the Society for the Prevention of
Cruelty to Animals, down on the Estimates. He
did not intend to say anything against it, but as
the sum was for Brisbane alone he would like to
know whether other societies would be treated in
a similar way. Then, again, the vote was only
for the protection of the lower animals. But
if a society was formed for the protection of
the higher animals, such as wowen and children,
would aid be given to it ?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he
could not see the necessity for the establishinent
of a society of that kind, and he hoped it would
never be necessary. If it was it would be the
duty of the Government to take the matter up
through the Police Department. It would be a
lamentable thing if a society had to be formed
for the protection of human beings. As to the
other matter, there was at present only the
Brisbane society in existence. The Govern-
ment would take the matter into consideration
when other societies were formed.

Mr. GROOM asked if the Colonial Secretary
would explain the item of £500 for relief of
aboriginals. How was it expended ?

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said it de-
pended upon cireumnstances. It happened occa-
sionally that owing to drought and other causes
the aboriginals became nearly destitute. At
Thornborough, quite recently, the aboriginals
were in a state of starvation, and provision had
to be made for feeding them. It was for cases
of that sort the vote was asked.

Question put and passed.

The ATTORNEY.-GENERAL (Hon. A.
Rutledge) moved that a smum not exceeding
£6,240 be granted for Law Officers of the Crown.
Hon, members would observe there was an in-
crease of £250. That was brought about by the
appointment of an additional clerk at a salary of
£100 a year, by an increase of £25 each to the
clerk and accountant, and another clerk who
was in receipt of £173. There was also an in-
crease of £50 in the amount for fees for defend-
ing aborigines and Polynesians. One of the clerks
who recelved increases had been nineteen years
in the service, and with the enormous increase
of the work of the office brought about by the
extension of the railways, necessitating nume-
rous transfers and conveyances which had to be
prepared, that amount of money which it was
proposed to give those officers was not inore than
enough ; they not only zealously performed their
duties in office-hours, but the great pressure of
business necessitated their frequently remaining
very long after the office closed, '
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Mr. MIDGLEY said there was a striking
difference in the language made use of in the
Tstimates when they “nt into the legal element.
He did not know whether it was mmpulwrv
by law that that kind of language should be
used, but he did not find it anyw. ere else on
the J‘ntimmteg He alluded to the heading on
the 36th page,  Their Honours the Judges.”
He thought that in a document of that kind
there Ol“’ht to be no titles or honours.

Mr. NORTON : The lusl,nrmtm speal of ““the
Hon. Arthur Macalister,’

Mr., MIDGLEY : The Colonial Secretary,
who was also 1)10»1(101 for in the schedule,
was called simply “the Colonial Secretary” ;
and he (Mr. Midgley) considered the Colonial
Secretary was as good a inan as any of the judges.
‘Why should they not be called “¢ Supreme Court
Judges,” without the additional description,
which was out of place in a document of that
kind ?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said he did
not think anyone would grudge the distinction
which was very properly given to the gentle-
men who occupied the high position of judges
of the Supreme Court. The hon. member
would be glad to learn, when he came to ¢ Dis-
trict Courts,” that the simple title of “Judge”
was put down. The judges of the Supreme Court
occupied a position quite apart from that filled
by the gentlemen who administered the various
public dopartment‘ Ministers were only ¢ Hon-
ourable” for the time beiny, except where they
had bheen privileged to retain the title in perpe-
tuity for long services. It was only just.that the
judges should be referred to in a way which
showed the appreciation of that House of the
dignity and responsibility of the positions they
occupied.

Question put and passed,
The ATTORNEY-GENERAL moved that

£6,223 be granted for salaries and contingencies in
connection with the Supreme Court. There was
an increase in the vote of £360. Tt was proposed
to increase the salary of the Registrar of the
Supreme Court by £150, making the salary £700.
The principal clerk in the office of the Registrar
was increased to £250, and there was an increase
of £150 to the travelling expenses of their
honours the judges when on circuit. The
wardener, also, whose nominal salary had bheen
£100, but who had actually been paid Gs. 6d. a
day, was put down for £110, which covered what
had long been really paid bim. With regard to
the Increases to the Registrar of the Supreme
Court, he might mention That that officer had been
in the public service twenty-two years. The posi-
tion bheing necessarily occupied by a professional
man, was one to which a larger salary ought to
attach than had hitherto bcen paid. The ()fﬁcer
had certainly not less responsible duties than the
under secrctaries of various departments, all of
whom, with the exception of the Under Secretary
to the Treasury, who got £700, received £800 a
year. The income of the metn ar’s Department
had greatly increased during the last few years,
In 1881 the revenue derived by fees was £2,750
—that was for fees and other charges which
were payable under various statutes—and it
had risen gradually until for the ten months
of the present year the amount was £4,127,
That was an increase in the amount of business
done of nearly 50 per cent. The amount of
revenue in 1883 was £3,708. The Registrar per-
formed a number of other important duties.
Not only was he taxing-master of the court—
and it was of the gr e'ttest importance to suitors
that an efficient pmfesﬂonal man should occupy
that position—but he was also registrar of
insolvency, stamp commissioner, registrar of
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joint-stock companies, and held other positions.
It would not be possible, he thought, to get a
competent professional man to accept the posi-
tion of Registrar of the Supreme Court for the
salary now paid.

Mr. NORTON : Whoishe?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: Mr. Bell
He had not been Registrar many years; but
during the tenure of office of some of his prede-
cessors, while he was subordinate to the Registrar,
he did the whole of the actual work of the office,
some of his predecessors being invalids, or being
otherwise unable to perform the duties. He
might say that amonyg those who were competent
to form an opinion, there was only one feeling
with regard to the valuable services which were
rendered by Mr, Bell.  Inthe performance of his
important duties he had always gained the entire
approbation of the judges of the Supreme Court,
under whose immediate cognisance his work
specially came. He thought the time had arrived
when the salary should be raised to £700.

Mr. NORTON :
schedule ?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said that was
because he was not one of those officers whose
salarics were augmented Dy fees, as the salaries
of clerks of petty sessions were. And he
would point out that there were clerks of
petty sessions—a position which did not require
to be filled by a professional man—who were
actually receiving something like £800 or £9060
a year in some cases ; whilst the salary of Mr.
Bell, who was a professional man, was only £350.
It was not in keeping with the fitness of things
that such a state of things should exist. The
present occupant of the office was a commis-
sioner for afhidavits, but was only allowed to
receive fees for affidavits sworn after office-hours.
There were twelve other commissioners for
atidavits within the walls of the Supreme Court
building, and it could be readily imagined that
when they had taken affidavits during the day,
there were very few to Dbe taken afterwards.
In fact, the Registrar would very seldom be
called upon to take an aflidavit except in
cases of emergency when persons called at his
private house. Under the 4th section of the
Stamp Duties Act of 1366, Mr. Bell, being
Registrar of the Supreme Court, was entitled to
receive a salavy of £50 a year as stamp commis-
sioner, but neither he nor his predecessors had
ever received it, The other commissioners were
the Registrar-General and the Under Secretary
for the Treasury, and when an increase of
salaries was made shortly after the Act passed,
it was understood that the participants in the
increase should forego their claim to the £50
a year under the Stamp Act. The Registrar
of the Supreme Court did not participate in the
increases ; but he had to forego his £50 a year,
so he did not receive what he was entitled to
have by statute. With regard to the other items,
it would be remembered that the number of
courts had been increased. There were now
circuit courts at Roma and Mackay, and there
was necessarily an increase in the travelling
expenses of the judges.

Mr. NORTON :
fees?

The ATTORNEY-GENERATL : Sometimes
in connection with #he Vice-Admiralty Court;
but they are very small, The court perhaps does
not sit once in a year.

Mr. BLACK asked if the Attorney-General
could give any idea of the total amount of the
fees? He said that the Ilegistrar held other
offices, which he supposed were not honorary.

Why is his name not in the

Does the Registrar get any
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The ATTORNIY - GENERAL said they
were all honorary. The only duties to which
fees were attached were those in connection
with the commissionership for atidavits—those
fees did not swount to more than a few shillings
in the course of the year—and the duties in con-
nection with the Vice- Admiralty Court. Those
were fixed by Imperial statute, and were very
insignificant.  Until last year, there had not been
a suit, he thought, in that court for some years.

Mr. NORTON said he thought that if they
laid down the principle that no officers should
receive fees, they should carry it out even if the
fees were small.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said the Gov-
ernment could not interfere with the fees received
by the registrar of the Vice-Admivalty Court. 1t
was an Lmperial Court established by Imperial
statute, and the fees, small as they were, wore
paid under the authority of that statute. The
Chief Justice was the judge appointed by the
Act, and he had certain powers with regard to
the appointment of other officers. The fees
payable were all specified by the statute—those
pald to the registrar as well as those paid to the
judges when dutics were discharged by them in
counection  with the Vice-Adniralty Cowt
suits.

Mr. GROOM said that when the Estimates
were under consideration last year, he had ocea-
sion to call the Attorney-General’s attention to
one of the duties that officer was supposed
to perform.  Amongst the offices he filled was
that of Registrar of Kriendly Societies. Now, the
Friendly Societics Act was passed in the year
1876.  In Y¥ngland it was brought in and carried
by Sir Stafford Northeote, who had since
introduced an amended Act, the result of
the working of the primary Act. It had
been one of the most valuable Acts ever
passed by the Tmperial Parliament. It hadheen
an immense protection to the working classes of
Great Britain by securing that their savings were
properly protected and invested in the very best
securities ; and yet the Act had never yet been
putin force in this colony. The societies were
increasing in number; the membership had
reached some thousands ; and they had a right to
the protection of the House—to know that their
savings were properly taken care of, and that the
investments were being made in accordance with
the Act. Another session had now passed round,
and the Registrar of Friendly Societics had not
fulfilled his duty of laying before Parliament
the annual returns each society was supposed
to provide. The friendly societies were re-
quired under the Act to supply to the
Registrar an annual reburn of their receipts
and disbursements, and all their assets; and
the whole of them were to be embodied in
a refurn and submitted to Parlinment for
publication, in order that the outside world
might know how the funds were being disposed
of.  In addition to that there was one particular
section which in England a short time ago—no
doubt hon. members had seen that the Act was
also in force in the colony of Victoria—had
brought about an extraordinary revelation.
Some of the societies which had been receiving
the earnings of the industrial classes for many
years were absolutely insolvent, the moneys
having been disposed of in a way not
justified by the Act. One of the subsections of
section 12 of the Act provided that the Registrar
of the Supreme Court should have power to call
in an experienced actuary, and make an annual
valuation. He would read the section, in order
that hon. members might see the importance of
the matter. HFvery registered society should—

“Once at least in the tlve years next after the oom-
mencement of this Act, or the registry of the society,
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and so0 again within six months after the expiration of
every five years succecding the date of the first valua-
tion under this Aet, cither cause its assets and liabilities
to be valued by a valuer to be appointed by the society,
and seud to the registrar a reportsigned by such valuer,
and which shall also stite his addrvess and eslling, or
profession, on the condition of the society, and an
abstract to he made by hiu ot the results of' Iils valuation,
together with a return containing sueh infornation
with ect to the benelits assured, and contributions
receivable by the society, and of its funds and ciloects,
debts and credits, as the registrar may fromn timne to
time require. or send to the registra return ol the
beocfits assured and contributions r able from all
members of the society, and of all its funds and effects,
debes, and  credi accowpanied by such evidence in
support thercol as the registrar prescribes, in which
case the registrar shall cause the asscts and liabilities
ot the society to be valued and reported on by some
actnary, and shall send to the socicty a copy of his
report and an abstract of the results of his valuation.”

The Act also provided that the funds of the
socteties should be invested—

“In a Government Savings Bank; in Quecnsland
Govermment debentur in the purchase of fand, ov in
the erection or alteration of offices ov other buildings
tlicreon; or upon any other security expressly dirceted
by the rales of the society. not being personal sceurity,
exeept as authorized with respect to loans.”

Now, with reference to the returns of the various
socicties to the Registrar from 1876 down to 1884,
that had never been done on any onc occa-
sion, nor did the industrial classes of the colony
know whether the societies in which they
had invested thousands of pounds were in
a solvent condition, and whether their money
was invested as provided by the Act. The
Attorney-General had promised last session,
when he (Mr. Groom) brought the subject
up, that he would endeavour to sece, during
the recess, if something could not be done to
give effect to the Act. The machinery of the
Act was very plain and simple.  There was an
extensive Government Printing Office where the
blank returns could be printed and sent to the
societies, and the Act put in force. He thought
it was of the highest consequence to the indus-
trial classes of the colony that there should be
satisfactory evidence that the provisions of the Act
were complied with, that their money was secured,
and that such sums as they had invested in the
societies were sufliciently protected. At present
there was nothing to show that that was the case.
He should be very sorry to question the solvency
of any of those societies; but it was of the utinost
consequence that, where they had an Act to
guard the savings of the industrial classes,
something should Dbe done by the Attorney-
General and his departient to carry out that
Act with effect. e should like to have an
assurance that, if they increased this proposed
salary from £550 to £700, the hon. gentleman
would in the future see that the Act was
thoroughly administered, and that the House
would be supplied with information as to the
position in which these societies stood.

The ATTORNEY -GENERALsaid that when
the hon. gentleman mentioned the matter last
session he had communicated with the Registrar,
who, it was his duty to state, had been collecting
all the necessary information to enable the Gov-
ernment to deal with the question in a way it
deserved. Tt was a very large question, and the
Registrar had placed certain information before
him, but it had been impossible for him to go
into the matter during the late short recess. The
Registrar had, however, placed before him all
the necessary materials for going into the ques-
tion in a way that would be satisfactory to the
hon. gentleman and to the members of the House,
The matter was not lost sight of, and would
not be lost sight of, and the Registrar had been
particularly industrious with reference to it.

The Hown., Siz T. McILWRAITH said if
the Attorney-General had told them what the
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Registrar had done in order to present the statis-
tics to the House it would have been better and
more satisfactory. But the Attorney-General
had not now given them any more information
as to the working of the Friendly Societies Act
than he did last year. He had not touched at
all on the difficulty of the Registrar’s inquiry
or of making up the statistics to be placed
before the House. If the money was voted they
should have the statistics. It required a special
staff quite beyond the ordinary staff of the
Registrar, and unless the money was given the
statistics could not be got. He (Sir T.
Mellwraith) did not want to interrupt the debate,
but he quite sympathised with the hon. member
for Toowoomba 1n his endeavours to get the
Friendly Societies Act effectively administered.
It was high time they had it administered, but
it was the wrong way to commence by increasing
the salary of the Registrar, as next wyear they
would be asked to give him another amount of
money for doing a particular work.

HoNOURABLE MEMBERS : No, no!

The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH: Yes.
What was the reason for giving Mr. Bell an
increase of from £550 to £700 as Registrar of the
Supreme Court? He was pald an increase
last year of £50; and what was the reason
which the Attorney-General gave now for the
proposed increase? It was, he said, that the
Registrar was a professional man, and that it was
difficult to supply his place by another profes-
sional man. Mr. Bell was clerk to the Registrar.
His services had all been acknowledged, and
were now paid at the rate of £330 a year, which
it was proposed to increase to £700 a year. He
(Sir T. MecIlwraith) could not conceive that it
was from the technical fact that he was a
barrister.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL : An attorney.

The Hox. Sik T. McILWRAITH asked if it
was an intelligent reason that the work of the
court had increased so much. It was not the
case that the work of the court had increased
so much as to justify such a large increase of
salary as that proposed. The work had increased
last year when the whole matter was considered,
and taking into cownsideration the work under
the TFriendly Societies Act, he was granted
£50 additional salary. And now they were
asked to grant £150 more. There was not a
single salary in the Hstimates in favour of which
less had been said than the increase asked
to be voted now. There were some salaries con-
stantly increased by every Government, especially
those of certain lawyers. Mr. Bell had been
constantly shoved before them, either by the
judges or by the Attorneys-General. He (Sir T.
MelIlwraith) knew that £700 had been pro-
posed for Mr. Bell by the Attorney-(reneral
under his administration, but it was not sup-
ported by any other Minister. And here was
Mr. Bell again trying to get an increase,
though he was very well paid as he was,
He could point to men in the Railway
Department, who did a great deal better work,
and whose services ought to be rewarded, but
whose salaries could not touch that of Mr. Bell.
But here was a man who, simply because he was
a lawyer, and because they could not supply his
place—as was said—was to get an increase of
£150. They could not possibly object to any other
increase if they did not to that one.

The PREMIER said that last year it had
been proposed to increase Mr. Bell’s salary from
£500 to £700, but when the Estimates came
on early on a Friday morning in a thin
House, the full increase had been lost by
the casting vote of the Chairman, and only
£50 had bheen voted. The Government felt
bound to renew the proposal this year, and
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had fixed the salary at £700 on the ground
that it was a fair remuneration for the work
to be done. They could not get a man com-
petent to do the work for a less sum. The
fact was—though he did not want to speak
unkindly of those who were gone—that for a
great numnber of years in the colony the work of
the Registrar’s office was never done at all ; and
nobody ventured to increase the salaries because
it was known the officers did not deserve more
than they got. And so the one thing reacted on
the other.  And when there was a vacancy there
was no more than the old amount available ;
and they could not get a man worth more. And
for twenty years they had not a competent
Registrar in the Supreme Court, and the result
was enormous increase of expense to the public.
An important duty of the Registrar was to hold
inquiries. Hewas in fact a judge, although these
duties as such were not perfornmed for twenty years.
All that was done was merely clerical work,
which a junior clerk could have performed. He
remembered bringing the matter under the
notice of the late Government when the last
vacancy occurred, and suggesting that a salary
of £800 should be offered so as to secure the best
man, They had a competent man now, and
they ought to pay him a fair salary.

The Hox. Sk T. McILWRAITH said it
was pleasing to hear the lawyers defending mem-
bers of their profession. There had been several
vacancies in the office. First, Mr Fowles was
appointed, and he was a much better officer than
Mr. Bell, who had great influence brought to
bear on his behalf. Then they had Mr. Craw-
ford ; and when he fell ill the Iawyers in the
House did not see how his place could be
supplied. It was alimost a question of giving a
pension to his widow on account of the valuable
serviceshe hadrendered tothecolony as Registrar.
And now it seemed that was mere fudge on the
part of the lawyers, and that no work but clerical
work had been done in the department for years
and that that work had been done by Mr. Bell.
Mr. Bell had formerly asalary of £350, then it
was increased to £400. Great political influence
was brought to bear to make Mr. Bell Registrar,
but he was not a lawyer at that time, although
he believed he had become one since. Mr.
Bell was simply a clerk, and his salary was
increased as the Registrar’s clerk. The work
Mr. Crawford’s time

was done during as
well as it had been done since, for they
had not yet got those friendly societies

statistics, the want of which was the only fault
brought against that office. He believed the
appointment was due to Mr, Bell, and that was
recognised by his being appointed at £500, after-
wards increased to £550. Now the Committee
was asked to make a jump of £150, because Mr.
Bell had become a lawyer. There was no
speciality in the law business because of which a
man should be paid higher than in any other of
the departments. The mere fact of a man being
called to the Bar while in the service of the
Government did not make him of much more
value to the State. As to the question of fees,
that matter ought to have been referred to
in the schedule. To say that he was entitled
to fees under the Imperial Act had nothing
whatever to do with the question, because the
pay came from this colony, not from the Im-
perial Government. Apart from the question of
fees the amount put down was simply an increase
to an officer who was no more entitled to it than
any other officer in the service. There was
nothing special about it, except that Mr. Bell
was a lawyer and had got the lawyers to defend
him.

Mr., FOXTON said the hon, gentleman’s
| opinion about lawyers defending lawyers would
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not prevent him from expressing his opinion
with regard to Mr. Bell. He had always been
of opinion—both before and since Mr. Bell
became a lawyer—that that gentleman was a
very excellent Civil servant. The hon. gentle-
man asked why the department of which Mr.
Bell was the head should receive a considera-
tion that was not given to the other Jepart-

ments. His (Mr. Foxton’s) contention was
to give it the same consideration—to give
the man, who occupied in it a position

similar to that of under secretaries in the other
departments, a salary equivalent to theirs. Non-
ministerial heads of departments were receiving
£800 a year, and yet it was assumed that because
Mr. Bell was a professional man he ought to do
the work for £250 a year less. As to the argu-
ment that Mr. Bell had become a lawyer while
in the Government service, it was really no argu-
ment at all. Mr, Bell had passed certain exa-
minations which were a certificate of his qualifi-
cations for the office, in some respects, though,
of course, not in all. He was sarprised that
Mr. Bell consented to retain the office at his
present salary ; for, as he had said on a pre-
vious occasion, he believed that if Mr. Bell
were to go into private practice his income would
be doubled. It would certainly be impossible to
get auy competent professional man of sufficient
standing for the same salary. It was absurd to
say that lawyers made a point of always defend-
ing one another. What difference was it to him,
as a lawyer, whether Mr. Bell got £500 or £550
a year. It was merely with himn a question
whether the officer was paid a fair salary for the
work done. The work performed by the Regis-
trar was of really more importance, in civil
matters, as far as the public was concerned,
than that performed by the district court
judges. The jurisdiction of the latter was
limited to £200, while, virtually, that of the
Registrar was unlimited. It was unreasonable
to expect that a man occupying the position of
the head of the Supreme Court Department
should not receive a salary equivalent to that
received by men holding what he asserted to be
inferior positions as heads of departments.

Mr. NORTON said he was unacquainted with
Mr. Bell, but he had always understood that he
was a very careful officer, and one who deserved
great credit for the way in which he performed
his duties. Although true, that was no reason
why they should be asked to grant the large
increase. The real reason why it was asked
for they had just heard from the Premier,
The Premier got up and told them that the
reason for proposing the increase was that it had
been proposed last session to give Mr. Bell an
increase of £200, and a majority of the Committee
voted against it and the increase was reduced to
£50. That increase was carried in a thin House
on a Friday morning. He pointed out that
during the time Mr. Bell occupied the office of
chief clerk, the position of Registrar became
vacant, and Mr. Bell always aspired to fill
it, and very properly too. At the time he
accepted the office the salary was £500, and when
he received the promotion he presumed he was
well satisfied with that salary. But was it any
argument to put forward that, because having
been satisfied to receive that, he was to have an
increase of £200? There was no reason in that.
There was another matter he would refer to,
Mr. Bell was a commissioner of stamps ; did he
receive any remuneration for that?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: He is en-
titled to it by the statute.

Mr. NORTON said that there were three
commissioners who were entitled to receive £50
a year ; did Mr, Bell never get it ?
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The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: The Regis-
trar never received it.

Mr. NORTON said the Under Secretary for
the Treasury never put ina claim for it, and he
understood that Mr. Drew never claimed it.
Did Mr. Bell also withdraw his elaim ?

The ATTORNEY-GENERATL said that Mr.
Bell had never put in a claim; but he did not
know whether any of his predecessors did. He
believed that the other two comrmissioners,
immediately after the Act was passed, did
receive the £30 per annum ; but subsequently,
when their salaries were increased, there was
an understanding that they should not
reccive that £30 to which they were entitled
by the statute. Mr. Bell was in the de-
partment for many years as a subordinate
officer, and during that time he did the actual

work of the office; and, when a vacancy
occurred in the registrarship, it was only

natural that the man who had been doing the
actual work should receive the appointment ; so
Mzr. Bell applied for the position, and obtained
it.  With reference to Mr. Crawford, he did
not wish to say anything against his competency
for the position ; but it was well known that he
was an invalid and, unfortunately, died not very
long after he accepted the office; and his helief
was that, had Mr. Crawford been a physically
strong man and not in the condition he
was, requiring to come to Brisbane for the
best medical advice, he would never have
thought of accepting the position of Registrar
with the salary that was attached toit. Since
he had been in the office there had been some
young men whoe were subordinates in the office,
and one had passed as solicitor ; as soon as he
had done so he sent in his resignation, and would
not condescend to continue there on a salary of
£400, with a prospect of succeeding the Registrar
at £300. But he was a young :nan, and had no
wife and family tugging at his coat-tails. If
Mr. Bell had been a younger man he would not
have accepted the position. He was not saying
that because he thought Mr. Bell was not equal
to something better ; but it wasbecause he was not
a young man. The hon. member for Mulgrave said
thatthe judges had recommended the increase, and
previous Atforneys-General had recommended it.,
Were there any persons more competent to recom-
mend it? They knew what the duties of the
Registrar were, and the talents and attainments
that were necessary for the office. It showsd
that it was not an effort on the part of the
Government to give an officer asalary to which
he was not fully entitled.

Mr, T. CAMPBELL said he did not rise for
the purpose of defending Mr. Bell, but he wished
to draw attention to the differences between the
valaries paid to the officers of the Supreme Court
here, and to those of the Northern court. He
did not suppose that the salary upon the Esti-
mates for Mr. Bell was too much, but he would
draw attention to the fact that the Registrar of
the Supreme Court at Bowen received only £350
per annum, or just half of what was proposed
to be given to Mr. Bell. The associate to the
Northern judge at Bowen received the same as
those in the Southern court—£300 a year. DBut
a fair proportion ought to be preserved. The
tipstaff at Bowen received the same as those in
Brisbane, when it was known that living up there
cost far more than in the South. The Attorney-
General should take that into consideration.
The clerk of the Supreme Court, Brisbane
received £400 a year, whilst the clerk in the
Northern Supreme Court only received £180.
He did not say that those gentlemen in Brisbane
did not deserve the salaries proposed for them,
but asked why the gentlemen in the North, who
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performed exactly similar duties, although per-
haps not so onerous, should not e down for o
larger salary.

The ATTORNEY -GENBERAL said  he
thought the officers of the Northern Supremc
Court were well paid considering the amount of
work they had to perform. There could be no
comparison between the amount of work done up
there and the work done in Brisbane.

The Hox. Stk T. McILWRAITH said the
Attorney-General supported the increase on
account of the judges and previous Attorneys-
General recommending it He (Sir . Mcll-
wraith) spoke from long experience, that the
lawyers had not the slightest conscience when it
came to the payment of men engaged in the law.
He spoke from experience of two or three Attor-
neys-General. The first thing he had to do was to
cut down the extravagant salaries that everyone
engaged in the legal profession was recommended
for. That was what they found in the present

Istimates. The member for Carnarvon asked,
“Why should this man be punished beeausze he isa
professional man ” and said he ought to be paid a
higher salary hecanse he was a professional an.
Thut was the contention of the Attorney-General
aswell. e (Sir T. McIlwraith) said the Registrar
learned his profession the same way as any other
Civil servant. The Committee would not regard
with much sorrow the possibility of Mr. Bell
leaving. He thought the position of Mr, Bell
ought not to be a much better position heeause
he was a professional man.  On the contrary, he
believed the difference made between him and
other Civil servants was wrong. Take a pro-
fessional man in the Railway, or Works, or
Lands Department. Those men were bound to
their position, and they could not move unless
the Government recognised their position. They
were bound to stick to the Civil Service, but Mr.

Jell could leave snd improve his position by leav-
ing. Let Mr. Bell leave the Govermnent service,
but they should not unduly raise Civil servants’
salaries to the detriment of other Civil servants,
It had been attempted to put the Registrar on
the same footing as the Registrar-General, but he
could sce no comparison between the two men,
And then again it had been tried to put him in
the same position with under secretaries, and he
saw no comparison there either ; and the fact of
the duties having been performed for so long for
£300 a year proved his case.

The Hon. J. ML MACROSSAN said one of the
reasons urged for the increase was that the gentle-
man held a position analogous to an under
secretary.  Well, if that was the case, why did
they want two under secretaries? In increasing
the salary of the secretary to the Crown Law
Offices, the Attorney-General had urged that he
was an under seeretary. e did not think it was a
good thing to have two gentlemen with the same
title, No one was disputing Mr. Bell’s ability,
but he observed that nobody on the other side,
except the lawyers, defended the increase. IHe
was sure that if the question came to a vote all
the lawyers would be found on one side, as they
had seen them always in the House whenever the
interests of one of the profession were in danger.
Why should Mr. Bell as Registrar of the Supreme
Court have such a salary when the Registrar of
the Sapreme Court of the North only got £350 7

The PREMIER : He gets £450.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN: That is
£100 less than My, Bell gets now,

The PREMIER : He has about a fifth of the
work to do.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN «id it was
a question of living as o gentleman ought to live,
The man who oceupled the position in the North
was & gentleman, and it did not matter whether he
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had less to do or not, his time was all oceupied
in the service of the State, and he got less than
the other man.  The judge got the same salary
in the North, and so did the tipstaff. Why the
unfortunate Registrar and the chief clerk should
get such low salaries he did not know, and
the only reason given by the hon. gentleman
was that those men were well and highly
paid.  That was no reason at all, because
they could not live as well on £450 as gentle-
men in the South who received £550 or £700. The
hon. gentleman must admit that the cost of living
in the North was much dearer than in the South,
and instead of giving a preportional increase on
account of the cost of living, there was an actual
decrease to a very large amount. Now, he
would like to poind out that in the Railway
Department theve was an increase in the pay of
the several classes of servants, in proportion to
the distance from DBrisbane, and the cost of
living. Certain classes of servants on  the
Central line got more than men in the same
class on the Southern line, and they got more
again on the Northern line than on the Central.
Yet now the Attorney-General said he thought
the Northern officers were highly paid.

Mr. KELLETT said he was one of those who
thought the jump was too big : from £350 to £700
a year. It was only a shovt time since Mr. Bell
was receiving £400 a year, and his salary was
raised to £500, and then £550. He did not know
anything of Mr. Bell, but he thought the law-
yers looked after their brothers in the trade very
well. He noticed that in the item of travelling
expenses for the judges an extra £100 was pro-
vided. Was that to pay off old accounts, or
wers there more judges. All round, there was
no doubt about it—the lawyers went for the
dollars,

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said the Com-
mittee voted the other night the salaryof a Regis-
trar of Titles, £650. Yearsago Mr. Bell was that
officer’s senior in the Registrar-General’s Depart-
went, Mr., Bell was transferred from the Regis-
trar-General’s Department at the suggestion of
Sir Arthur Palmer, who was then Colonial Secre-
tary; and he was given to understand, he (the
Attorney-General) believed, by Sir Arthur
Palmer that he would better himself by the
change—that was, the change from the Real
Property Office to the Supreme Court Department.
Mr. Milne, now the Registrar of Titles, was voted
£650, the other evening, while Mr. Bell, who had
since added to his qualifications, was only getting
£550. There could seriously be no comparison
between the remuneration demanded by the
Registrar of the Northern Supreme Court and the
Registrar of the Supreme Court in Brisbane. In
the interests of the general public it was necessary
that there should be a first-class man in Brisbane.,
Tmportant questions relating to matters before
the court in equity were referred to him
by the judges, wnd on his report the judge
gave his decision ; so that the functions of the
Registrar were of a most responsible character.
It was making light of a most responsible officer
to suggest that he was well paid. With regard to
the under secretaries, the Registrar was not an
under secretary to the Attorney-General; but he
was rather a sort of under secretary to the
Supreme Court, an institution which to a great
extent stood by itself.

The Hox. Sir T. McILWRAITH said the
hon. member for Stanley had challenged the
increase to the vote for travelling expenses of
their honours the judges. Was it to be under-
stood that the judges were getting more extrava-
gant? \What was the reason for the increase ?

The PREMIER said that question was
brought up the other day by the hon, member for
Burnett, with reference tu a sum of over £300
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expended by one of the judges while on circuit,
which was a very remarkable sum. After the
expression of opinion in the House on that
occasion, he had anticipated that there would be
no reason for further complaint ; but he regretted
to say that that day he had received from the
Treasury memos. showing that the same learned
wentleman, while on the circuit on which he was
at present engaged, had already expended £200.
How much more he was going to expend before
he returned to Bowen he (the Premier) did not
know; but looking at the circumstances, and
considering he was the proper person to do so,
he intended to communicate with the gentleman
on the subject. He was informed that the £650
on the Estimates was already spent, and the first
six months of the year were not yet over,

The Hox. Sz T. McILWRAITH asked
whether the Committee were to understand
that the amount voted for travelling expenses
of the judges for the whole year had been spent
in the last six months?

The PREMIER : I understand so.
The Hox. St T. McILWRAITH : And that

the Government have no control over it ?

The PREMIER : No.

The Hox. S1R T. McILWRAITH : Was that
the kind of economy that was going to be prac-
tised to confine the expenses to £650? What
amount had been spent for the judges’ expenses ?
The Committee should know exactly what they
were doing.

The ATTORNEY - GENERAL said the
amount spent last year was £732. Two new

courts had been established—one at Roma and
another at Mackay ; and the (Government thought
£150 added to the £500 previously on the Esti-
mates ought to cover the extra expenses of visit-
ing those places. At the time the Estimates
were framed the amounts of the vouchers for the
expenditure up to that time were not all in;
and they did not know what the expenses
would be. 1t had always been left to the honour
of the judges to say what the expenses were.
Since the discussion which took place in the
House the other day, it had been represented to
him that in the North—in Cooktown and Towns-
ville—the judges were considered fair game by
publicans and others.
Mr. NORTON : Not in the South.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said he did
not know what the Northern judge was expected
to pay at those places; and how he was to
account for the large amounts he could not say.
But the matter was of such a character that
some communication would be made from the
Government with regard to those expenses.

Mr. NORTON said that surely the judges
were not going to be ¢‘ plucked ” by the publicans
in that way.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: We do not
want them to haggle about an hotel hill.

Mr. NORTON said there was no necessity to
haggle about it. A fair thing was a fair thing,
and there should be no haggling. Because a
man was a judge, he surely ought not to pay
more than anybody else. He would undertake
to say that if the judges had to pay their own
expenses they would not pay double. Nobody
would know better how to keep down the
expenses ; they would not allow the publicans to
charge them more than they charged anyone else.
He did not see why the judges’ expenses should
be paid in a.different way from those of other men.
Why were men o be looked upon as something
sn superior when they became Judges, that the
were to be allowed tospend whatever they liked,
while agher public otficers were limited to so
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much a day? When the Attorney-General told
them that judges were looked upon as fair
game by hotel-keepers, he had furnished
the best possible argument for allowing the
judges a certain fixed sum instead of con-
tinuing the present system. ILet them have
a couple of guineas, or even three guineas
a day, but let Parliament know what they were
getting. They were only ordinary men, and
there was no reason why the Committee should
treat them as something quite beyond ordinary
people. Then, he believed judges were rather
fond of special trains., Of ecourse no one
wished to say that they should not have
special trains when it was for the advantage of
the country ; but he had heard on good authority
that sometimes they took lawyers with them,
who, otherwise, would have had to pay their
fares. He thought it was quite time a change
should be made, and judges limited to a certain
rate per day. He would like to point out that
what was alleged to take place at Cooktown and
Townsville probably took place elsewhere; if
judges were considered fair game in those places,
they would probably be considered fair game
everywhere else.

The ATTORNEY.-GENERAL said that,
during the time the present Government had
been in office, only one judge had had a special
train, and that was under very special circum-
stances. The Chief Justice was away on'leave in
England, and Mr. Justice Pring, at thebeginning
of the present year, fell seriously ill in Sydney,
and was unable to go to Roma, Toowoomba, and
Ipswich—the circuit for which he was put down.
Mr. Justice Harding, the Acting Chief Justice,
was consequently the only Supreme Court judge
in the colony, and he very kindly undertook, at
very great inconvenience tohimself, to do treble
work—to do all the hard work down here, and
then start off immediately on circuit. To enable
him to do that it was absolutely indispensable
that he should have a special train to go to
Roma and back, and he left Brisbane on Satur-
day night. Almost up to the hour of his
departure, he was engaged on most important
Supreme Court work in Brisbane. That was
the only case in which the present Government
had placed a special train at the disposal of
any judge, and in that case there was mno
alternative except to postpone the court, or
appoint an acting judge. With regard to travel-
ling expenses, he had never heard of any un-
reasonable charge being made in any of the
southern towns. The only cases that had
come under his knowledge of anything of
the kind were in connection with the Northern
Supreme Court. As an illustration he might men-
tion a circumstance that had been stated to him
respecting the late Mr, Justice Sheppard. Mr.
Justice Sheppard was not regarded as an ex-
travagant man. On one occasion at Townsville
he complained of some charges that were made,
and the landlord politely informed him that he
was welcome to go somewhere else next time.
That was what he (the Attorney-General) was
told, and he believed Judge Sheppard did not
stay at that hotel any more. That was the
kind of thing the judges had to put up with in
the North. He had not heard of anything of
the kind in the South. Perhaps they did not
often have any very fine sights in Cooktown,
and when a judge went there they made the
most of it.

Mr. MACFARLANE said he was not going to
walk into the judge for spending so much
money ; he would rather walk into the Minister
for appointing that judge. It must have been a
very bad appointment. He should be glad if
the Attorney-General would tell them whether
the judges were fond of gambling ; there must bg
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something very wrong when they spent so much
money. The hon. gentleman had told them
that during the year one of the judges was
away, and one was on his back, so that there
was only one Supreme Court judge in the
colony. It seemed that there were only two
judges travelling last year, and he wanted to
know if their expenses were greater than this
year when four travelled on circuit.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said it did
not matter whether two or three judges were
capable of travelling. There were a certain
number of circuits fixed by the judges which had
to be performed in the year, and if a judge
appointed to take a cireuit was ill, or absent,
that circuit had to be performed by another
judge, so that there was no difference in the
actual expenses whether one or two judges were
incapacitated.

Mr. KELLETT said that from the explana-
tions they had got from the Attorney-General
and the Premier, it was high time some considera-
tion was given to the expenses of the judges. He
was informed that the district court judges got
s fixed amount for expenses—23s. a day, and he
wanted to know if the judges of the Supreme
Court could spend in eating and drinking more
than the judges of the district courts. If
their Honours of the Supreme Court were bigger
men or drank more liquor, let them be paid
two guineas a day. It was high time that some
alteration should be made, and he did not see
why they should not be put on the same par as
to travelling expenses as, say, the rallway officials.
Let them have all expenses necessary for the
dignit, of their office certainly, but it should be
a fixed sum, and they should be allowed to spend
no more,

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said he would
not say that the effect of the discussion in the
Committee with reference to expenses might
result in a less extensive expenditure by the
Northern Supreme Court Judge in future. If
it did not he dared say that the head of
the Government would see that something was
done. But there was a difference between the
Supreme Court judges and the district court
judges, not only in the colony, but in England
and every English-speaking country. They did
not receive the samesalary, though for his own part
he had always contended that the district court
judges did not get sufficient recognition. The
salary of the Supreme Court judges was £2,000 a
year with a pension, and of the district court
judges £1,000 and no pension, There was, there-
fore, a disparity between them in salary and posi-
tion ; and it would not do to place the judges of
the Supreme Court on an equality with those
of the district courts as to travelling expenses.
Until lately they had never had any complaint
with regard to those expenses, and he would
fain hope, after what had been said, that there
would be no more reason.

The Hon. Sz T. McILWRAITH asked what
action the Government had taken when they
found a voucher sent dowun for £300 for one
month’s expenses, and another for £200 for
another month’s expenses ?

The PREMIER said that the £300 had been
discussad on the Hon, Mr. Moreton’s motion some
time ago. The Attorney-General had explained
that they had not taken any action in the matter.
It was hoped that some explanation would have
been made, but none had been so made. Now
another sum had come under the notice of the
Government, and he thought it was quite time
that explanations should be asked for. The
matter only came under the notice of the Gov-
ernment that morning, and he had resolved to
communicate with the judge as soon as he
had time to do so,
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The How. J. AL MACROSSAN said he hoped
the Preniier would tell them what power he had in
the matter. He had always understocd that the
judges were completely ontside the power of the
Ministry so far as expenses were concerned, and
he had heard of gentlemen who occupied the
position of Attorney-General speaking of the
judges as demigods, and as if no man were even
to look at them.

The PREMIER said he felt quite equal to
looking at them. Tt had mnever been the
practice of any Governuient to interferein a matter
of that kind; nor had any occasion ever before
arisen for interference. The judges had never
shown themselves unworthy of confidence uptothe
present time. He expressed no opinion as to the
matter under discussion, because there might be
some perfectly sufficient explanation to be given ;
butstill the matter seemed so extraordinary that he
should ask for such an explanation. The (zov-
ernment had no control whatever over the judges,
but they, as the Government, were entrusted to
expend the public money, and they were
entitled to know how it was expended. He could
not believe that any otficer in the Public Service
—however high-—would refuse to give an ex-
planation ; and if he did, he (the Premier) had
no doubt he would be dealt with. But until it
arose he saw no reason why they should deal
with the contingency.

The Hon. Sir T. McILWRAITH said there
was a way of doing so. Let the Committee vote
£500, putting £125 to the credit of cach judge,
and when that money was expended let their
cheques be dishonoured. That was the proper
way to do it ; that was done before.

An HonourasrLe MEMBER: No, no!

The Hon. Siz T. McILWRAITH said the
thing had happened in the colony, though
he did not suppose it actually went so far
as to refuse to cash the cheque. He knew
it had been proposed. If the Committee granted
£650 let it be understood that that sum would
be pald and no more. That was quite
sufficient for the year. There was another point
in regard to the judges themselves. 1t was
quite unfair for the Attorney-General to give
them to understand that they were going to
condone all those offences, and in effect to say
that they had done perfectly right. For the
protection of the judges and theiwnselves they
ought to let them understand how much they
might spend. For if the publicans up north
came to understand that the (Fovermmment were
going to pay any bill a publican sent down, there
would always be big enough bills.

The Hon. J. M. MACROSSAN said he did not
think it was quite fair to throw all the blame on
the publicans up north. The publicans up north
were not one whit different from the publicans
down south, and he hoped the Premier would
not take the rapacity of the publicans up north
as an excuse.

Question put and passed.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL moved that
£4,630 be granted for the Sheriff's Deypartment.
There was an increase in that branch of £300.
The salary of the Under Sheriff was put down
at £450, and a junior clerk in the Sheriff’s oftice
had been advanced from £75 to £100. An
additional bailiff had been appointed at a salwry
of £50. The salary of the Northern Sheriff had
been increased from £100 to £150. That officer
had been many years at Bowen, and had to
perform increased duties in consequence of the
extension of the circuit, and was hesides a 1ot
deserving officer. There was also a bailiff’s salary
provided for Maclkay, where a circuit court had
been established; and there was an additional
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amount of £30 for premiums on fidelity policies
of bailiffs appointed under the Sheriffs Act of
1875, With reference to the Under Sheriff, that
officer had been sixteen years in the Public
Bervice, and it was nine years since he had
received any increase to his salary. Twenty
years ago the occupant of that position was re-
ceivingmore than the present Under Sheriff would
receive, even if he got the increase put down on
the Estimates for him.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN asked whether
it was intended, on the completion of the railway,
t0 extend the Supreme Court to Hughenden?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL replied that
when the railway was completed there would be
very little difficulty in suitors coming to Charters
Towers, A district court had lately been estab-
lished at Hughenden, and that, he thought,
would meet all the requirements of the district
for sometime to come.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said the
answer cut both ways. The railway would also
be the means of conveying the judge to the suitors
at very little extra expense to the country and at a
great deal less expense to the suitors.

Question put and passed.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL moved that
£8,805 be granted for District Courts. There was
an increase in the vote amounting to £690. The
salary of the Registrar of the District Court at
Maryborough had been increased from £30 to
£50. District courts had been established at
Muttaburra, Ravenswood, and Hughenden,
necessitating the appointment of a registrar
and hailiff at each place. An amount of
£500 had been added to the allowances to
witnesses and jurors in consequence of the
enormous increase in the amount of legal
business to be done. The number of witnesses
and jurors required was largely increased, and
of course their expenses were increased corres-
pondingly. A sum of £50 had been added to
bailiffs for service of jury summonses. The
serving of summonses was often performed
under circumstances of great difficulty, particu-
larly in times of drought, when horse-flesh was
very scarce, and horse-feed very high. The
amount paid had been found in many cases
inadequate, and an increase was necessary to
meet the requirements.

Mr. NORTON asked why the salary of the
Registrar at Maryborough had been increased,
and none other ?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL replied that
during the last few years Maryborough had
become a town of great importance, and the
amount of district court work tramsacted there
was very much greater than formerly. At Rock-
hampton, it would be noticed, the Registrar had
a salary of £100 ; but although there were four
courts at Rockhampton and only three at Mary-
borough, he believed the amount of legal business
transacted at the latter place was nearly eqmal to
that at the former place.

The Hox, J. M. MACROSSAN said that
surely if the increase of the population at Mary-
borough warranted an increase to the salary
of the Registrar, the increase of the popu-
lation at Townsville warranted a similar inowease
to the salary of the Registrar at that place.
The hon. gentleman must admit that there had
been a larger proportionate increase in Towns-
ville than in many other towns, and it was fast
agsuming & prominent position. Yet there was
only £30 down for Townsville, and it was worth
while for the Attorney-General, when framing
his Estimates again, to see that there was an in-
crease put down for that place. Perhaps the
hon. gentleman would tell them what the Regis-
trars at Muttaburra and Hughenden received?
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The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said that they
received £20 a year. The gentleman referred
to by the last speaker did not get as much as he
should, and he would take it into consideration
when framing the Fstimates again. The salary
for the Registrar at Roma was fixed by the pre-
vious Government.

Mr. BLACK : If the salary is too high it can
be reduced.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL:
think it is excessive.

Mr. BLACK : There cannot be much work
there.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: Thers is a

large amount.

Mr. BLACK said that, as compared with
Townsville, there was not one-third of the work.
Tt seemed strange that Maryborough was coming
to the front, He did not know whether it was
through having a Minister of its own. REarlier
in the evening they found that Maryborough
had a double charifable allowance, and now the
registrar’s fees were increased from £30 to £50.
It was not worth while cavilling at the small
items, but he should like to see about 10 per
cent. or 15 per cent. knocked off all salaries
above £300 a year. That was the way to make
a reduction in the ever-increasing expenditure
that was going on, and he believed the time was
not far distant when that amount would be taken
off all salaries indiscriminately. Under the head
of travelling expenses, there was £1,400 for distriet
court judges and Crown prosecutors, He wished
to know how it was that those travelling expenses
were higher than those of their Honours them-
selves.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said there
were three district court judges, and some of
them had to go four times a year to some
places on circuit, others three times, and none
less than twice a year. Unlike their Honours,
they were limited to a certain amount, 30s. a
day, and 35s. for the Northern Judge. The
Crown prosecutors only got their steamer fares
and a guinea a day allowance. He had had
representations made to him by the Northern
Crown jprosecutors and the Northern Crown
Solicitor that they were obliged to pay, every
time they went north, a considerable amount out
of their own pockets to make up their hotel bills.
The district court judges complained in the
same way. There was no extravagance in the
item.

Mr. LISSNER said there was a great dis-
crepancy between the salaries of the bailiffs.
At Rockhampton, Maryborough, and Too-
wonmba they received £150, and at Townsville
£75. That was not exactly fair. There was a
great deal more work at Townsville than inmany
other towns ; but he supposed the vote would
remain as it was unless some one called attention
to it.

Mr. GROOM said he did not wish to draw any
invidious comparisons between one town and
another. There was no doubt that Townsville was
one of the most rising and prosperous towns in
the North; and there was more business done
there in a day than in many other towns to-
gether in a week. He noticed that at a little
place like Springsure, for instance, the Clerk of
Petty Sessions, who was district registrar also,
was in receipt of a salary of something like £666
per annum, while the Police Magistrate at
Townsville, whose time was all taken up, only
received £500, and £50 allowance for quarters;
so that there was a great disparity indeed in
regard to wome salaries, and it was a matter
which the Government ought to take into con-
sideration. The salaries would have to be recast,
and some provision made for the extra cost of

I do not
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living. The cost of living in the North was 23
or 30 ner cent. higher than it was in the South.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said he had
made a slight slip with regard to the travelling
expenses of the judges. The allowance was not
30s. and 83s. per day, but 25s. and 30s.

The Hox. J. M. MACR AN asked if that
included the steamboat fare and the coach fare ?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: No; exclu-
sive of that.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN asked how it
was that, with the additional circuits of the dis-
trict court judges at Muttabuira, Hughenden,
and Ravenswood, no more was asked for travel-
ling expenses for the present year than was down
for last year? It was £1,400 in hoth cases.
There must be some mistake; and he was in-
clined to think that district court judges and
Crown prosecutors received too little for travel-
ling expenses. Other gentlemen they had been
discussing lately got far too much, and the
matter should be squared a little. He quite
agreed with what the Attorney-General had said
as to the increase in the travelling expenses.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said that the
amount voted for last year was not all spent,
and he had felt that he would not be justified in
asking for an increased snm, although new courts
had been established.

The How. J. M. MACROSSAN said he
hoped it would not be the means of cutting down
the travelling expenses of the Northern Judge
and Crown Prosecutor.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL: No. Hehad
heen making inquiries in regard to the travelling
expenses of the district court judges to ascertain
whether the amount voted was sufficient. If he
found that it was not he should have wmore to
say about it.

The Hox. J. M. MACROSSAN said he had
travelled in the North both as a private indi-
vidual and a Minister, and if the Attorney-
(Feneral thought his opinion worth anything he
wight say that two guineas a day was not too
much. He should like the hon. gentleman to
givesome assurance that the wmatter referred to
by the hon. members for Toowoomba, Charters
Towers, and himself, in reference to the stereo-
typed nature of the salaries for registrars and
hailiffs, would receive some attention. Some of
the towns had been growing in importance within
the last few years without the knowledge of the
Government, yet the salaries were the same for
the officers he mentioned year after year.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said he could
xive an assurance that the subject would receive
attention. There had been a rule fixing the
amount granted. Where the district court only
sat twice a year £20 was granted to the registrars,
Where it sat three times a year, £30 was granted.
There were one or two exceptions to that rule.
There was a great deal in what the hon. gentle-
man said, and he would consider the guestion
before the next Estimates were framed.

Question put and passed.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL moved that
£1,527 be granted for Insolvency. The only
increase was £100 to the Otlicial Trustee, It was
not proposed to ask for that increase, so he would
move the amount less £100. A rearrangernent
of the office was pending, and it would not be
necessary to vote the additional £200. He
moved that £1,427 be granted for the service,

Mr. T. CAMPBELL asked the Attorney-
Genersl why the amount was being cut dowm.
Was it not a fact that the gontleman was about
$0 leave? :
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The ATTORNEY.GENERAL szaid a re-
arrangement was pending which had not yet
been completed.

Mr. T. CAMPBELL: May T ask if an
appointiuent has been made ?

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL : No.

My, LISSNER : It is worth another £100 on
account of the increase of insolvents,

Question put and passed.

The ATTORNEY-GENHERAL moved that
£900 be granted for Intestacy.  An increase had
been proposed to the gentleman who acted as
clerk and Deputy Curator, but he had been
transferred to another office and his successor
would not receive an increase.

Mr. NORTON: What is the first
Curator of Intestate Estates, €475 7

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said the re-
arrangement of the otfice affected that officer
also. It was proposed to amalgamate two
offices.

Mr. ARCHER said they would like to under-
stand what was to be the salavy of the Curator
of Intestate Hstates. IHe saw he was put down
at £600 in the schedule. Did he fill any other
office, or was he going to do anything which
would add to his salary ¥

The PREMIER said he had explained the
matter the other day when the Insanity vote was
under consideration. They had a new officer in the
Curator of Imsanity, and it was considered un-
necessary to have two officers performing similar
duties. The duties of a curator were exactly
the samne, whether the estate of a deceased person
was heing administered or the estate of an
fnmate of the asvlum. £330 was voted under
the head of *Insanity,” and another £330 it was
proposed to vote under the head of ‘‘ Intestacy.”
The sum now asked was only for six months.
The officer who now held the office was at present
receiving £700, of which £100 was as Inspector
of Distilleries and the other £600 as Curator of
Intestate Estates.

Mr. BAILEY said he wonld like to call
attention to the administration of that depart-
ment. When a person died without a will, his
estate was taken in charge of by the Curator of
Intestate listates, who advertised for claims
against the estate to be sent in. Tt was
the practice for people to do so; but some
of thent never heard any more about them.
No notice was given that their claims were
recognised, and year after year the money
realised from the estate remained in the hands of
the department, while the creditors were unpaid.
He thought that all claims ought to be acknow-
ledged and scrutinised ; but at present people
who were creditors, finding, after two or three
years, that they got nothing out of the estate,
had to send to some friend in Brisbane to find
out where the money was. He thought it was a
weakness in the administration of the depart-
ment that the claims of creditors were not
more promptly recognised and paid. He didnot
know why the money should be allowed to remain
where it did not belong, while people to whom it
did bLelong were actually prevented from receiv-
ing it. He was (uite sure that there were thou-
sands of pounds there, the property of the people
who had sent in proper claims ; but the claims

" had never been recognised in any way, and the
creditors did not know that there was money to
theijr credit,

The ATTORNEY.GENERAL said it was the
first time he had heard of anything of that kind ;
and he thought the hon. member must have been

, miginformed, Very lkely the persvps referred
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to by the hon. member never sent in their
claims, and could not of course share in the money
distributed from the assets. The hon. member
must he mistaken in thinking that a large sum
was lying in the departinent.

Mr, BAILEY said he only spoke from per-
sonal experience.

The ATTORNREY-GENERAL: It was never
brought before me.

Mr. MACFARTLANE said that a few months
ago he applied at the Intestacy Office for some
money due to him, and in two months it was
paid. That did not bear out what the hon.
member had said.

Mr. BAILEY said the matter happened in
this way. It was acknowledged by the office
that the claims had been received ; he saw it in
the books himself. Afterwards, when it was
supposed that the clains had been gone through,
the claimant sent a request that the money
should be paid to him, though he did not know
there was any money. He put in his claim, and
he (Mr. Bailey) supposed it was recognised. [t
certainly ought to have Leen serutinised, to see
whetherit wasajustelaimornot. Yearsafterwards
the creditor heard that there was money to his
credit, and he got his friend in Brisbane to find
out whether it was so: then he got the money.
Notice should be given to the creditor that there
really was something to his credit. In the case
he veferred to, the money ought to have heen
paid as soon as possible after the estate had been
realised.

The ATTORNEY-GENERAL said there
must be ~ome special circumstances in the case
the hon. member referred to. If the hon. mem-
ber had taken the trouble to bring the matter
before him (the Attorney-General), he would
have found out the reasons for the delay.

Mr. FOXTON said that it seemed to hiw the
thing was in a nutshell. The claimant veferred
to by the hon. member sent in his claim,
and let the mabter vest. That was not
what creditors did as a rule. If a man did
not like to take the trouble to find out
whether there was any money belonging to him,
he was very well served if he did not get it. Tt
was not for the Curator of Intestate Estates to
run all over the country to find out where people
were. It was to the interest of the people them-
selves to go to the Government office and see
whether the money was payable. That was done
in Insolvency.

Mr. ARCHER said the mistake was that the
claimant did not apply to a lawyer; that was
the lesson to be learnt from theease. He had no
doubt that had the hon. member for Carnarvon
been applied to, would have got the money much
sooner.,

Mr. FOXTON said he was much obliged to the
hon, member for advertising him ; and he hoped
that some person would take his advice. That
was not the first time that the hon., member had
spoken in what he thought was a jocular manner
in reference to him (Mr. Foxton) and his profes-
sion. The hon. member did him the kindness
on a recent occasion to say that he had heard a
report that he was the legal adviser to a com-
pany who were the promoters of a private Billhe
{Mr. Toxton)was trying to putthrough the House.
[t had nothing to do with him, or anybody else,
if the hon. member chose to listen to tittle-tattle
outside that House. He took no notice of the
hon. member’s statement at the time, hecause
he wanted the Bill to go through, and he had
learnt during the short time he had been in
that House that if an hon, member wanted to
yet a nieasure passed it was not wise to provoke
opposition. But he had no hesitation in telling
the hen, member that if be took as much care
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of his own reputation for good taste as he did for
his (Mr. Foxton’s) reputation in connection with
that particnlar affair, it would be more credit to
him. In spite of the hon. member’s age and
venerahle appearance he appeared to be one of
those who lstened to tittle-tattle outside and
repeated it in the House.

Mr, BATLEY said before the vote passed he
wished it to be publicly known whether, in the
case of a man dying intestate, creditors in the
country putting in their claims would get their
money, or whether they had to employ a lawyer
or agent in Brisbane. He had always thought
that when a man sent in his bill, whether against
an intestate estate or not, he had a right to
expect payment ; but it seemed that there was «
different way of carrying on things in that
department. He was sure there were thousands
of pounds in that department, the property of
creditors in the country.

Mr. GROOM said that he knew a case where
the necessary accounts had been forwarded to
the office accompanied by an aflidavit, and the
money was paid within a very short time without
any difficulty. He thought that, as the Attorney-
(ieneral suggested, there must have been some
mistake or informality about the ease mentioned.
The Intestacy Department was excellently con-
ducted, and anyone having business there re
ceived the utmnost courtesy and attention.

Question put and passed.

The MINTSTER FOR PUBLIC INSTRUC-
T1ON (Hon. 8. W, triffith) moved that there be
granted a sum of £4,100 for salaries and con-
tingencies in connection with the Department of
Public Instyuetion.

Mr. ARCHER drew the hon. member’s atten-
tion to the fact that it was a quarter-past 10
o’clock.

The MINISTER FOR PUBLIC INSTRUC-
TION said it was a great deal earlier than they
usually adjourned when dealing with Estimates
He believed hon. members desired to get through
the business before Christmas, and to do that
they must get themselves to work. Tt would be
very inconvenient to have to come back next
vear for the sake of a few days. He would ask
hon. members to sit a little longer. In the vote
he had moved there was a new clerk at £100,
another clerk was down for an increase of £20,
and there was an increase of £30 for contingen-
cies.

Mr. ARCHER said he thought they had done
an excellent evening’s work, and if they passed
that vote the hon. gentleman ought to be very
well gatisfled. He did not think the increases
were greater than necessity required, and he
would not vbject to the vote. He thought they
hadbetter passit and retiretotheir virtuoushomes

Mr, T. CAMPBELL said he noticed the
Accountant was down for £400, while the
accountants in other departments ranged from
£500 to £550. The Education vote amounted,
he thought, to about £180,000, and as far as he
understood, the whole of that passed through the
Accountant’s hands, He should like an explana-
tion of the cause of the very great discrepancy
between the salaries of the accountants in the
different departments.

The MINTSTER FOR PUBLIC INSTRUC-
TION said that the salary was increased last
year, and it was not the practice to increase the
same salary two years in suceession unless it was
very low. The hon. member would observe that
the Accountant in the Colonial Secretary’s De-
partment was till this year receiving only £350 «
vear, although the annual expenditure in that
department was £430,000. He might say that
the Accountant in the Department of Public
Instruction was an extremely competent officer.
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Mr. T. CAMPBELL said he was not quite
content with the explanation. The officer, he
understood, had been in the department about
twenty years ; and he thought the hon. member
for Blackall-—as well as other members in that
Committee, and in another place—who had been
at thehead of the department, could bear him out
when he asked whether that officer should be kept
on a small salary of £400 after such long service;
while other accountants, without half the length
of service, and he thought he might say, with
not half the ability, had salaries of £500 or £550.

Question put.

Mr, T. CAMPBELL said he certainly shouid
not let the vote go without further explanation
from the Minister for Public Instruction. He
knew himself that the officer had been in the
department over twenty years; and he had an
excellent character for competency, as the hon.
the Minister himself had been pleased to say;
why, then, he should receive less salary for doing
as much work as other accountants in the Public
Service was beyond his comprehension. In-
creases had certainly been given to officers not
more worthy to receive them; and he did not
see why well-deserved increases should not be
granted.

The MINISTER FOR PUBLIC INSTRUC-
TION said he could not give any further explana-
tion than that already given.

Mr. ISAMBERT said he wished to draw the
attention of the Committee to certain passages
in the eighth report of the Minister for Public
Instruction. On page 4 they found —

“It became manifest towards the close of the year
that the number of teachers trained in the colony was
not sufficient to supply the requirements of the State
schools in course of erection. Provision has since been
made through the Agent-General for securing the
services ol British teachers of extended professional
training, including a residence of two years in a train-
ing college recognised by the Privy Council, and of
subsequent experience in the charge of schools. Con-
sidering the large number of persons who enter the teach-
ing profession in Great Britain, I am confident that an ade-
guate numberof well-qualified and traine 1teachers—men
in the prime of life—ecan be thus secured. and that the
necessary moderate outlay will be well ineurred. At
the same time I am glad to be able to record the fact
that many teachers of our own training have displayed
great aptitude for their profession. Some of them are
now in charge of large schools, which they condnet with
great efficiency ; and I lock forward with coufidence to
a continually increasing proportion of these gentlemen
in the service of the department.”

And further on they found :—

“Young men who have completed their pupilage are

often attracted to other occupations by hetter prospects
of rapid advancement, and a certainty of easier work
with less restraint and self-denial, and sometimes,
doubtless, by higher pay.”
Now, he took it that there was not a branch in
the Civil Service of any country more honour-
able, more important than that of the teachers.
They knew that the teachers had the moulding
of future generations in their hands; and to a
great extent what the future of the colony would
be, was the doing of the teachers of the present
day. If anyone would take the trouble to look
through the report he would find many defects
disclosed. Tor instance, there was no system
whatever in the reports of the inspectors. One
inspector reported in such a way, and another
in another way, and it was hence a great
hardship to teachers that the inspectors were
changed so often. The Inspector-General thus
wrote on page 44 :—

“Of new arrivals from the British Islands there were
taken into the service during 1883 nine classified
teachers—six males and three females—of whom three
males were sent out by the Agent-General.

“The Agent-General is instructed to send out none
but teachers of high classification, who have studied
two years at atraining college, have passed well the
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Privy Council examination for certificate, and have a
good professional record. There seems to be no diffi-
enlty in getting as many inen of that kind as we
require.”

He wished to draw the particular attention of
the Committee to the following passage :—

« And therefore, as we could not efficiently train them
up to the standard mentioned for 2 mueh larger outlay
than the cost of pasage, it seems well to continue to
draw a supply of teuchers from the mother-country.
The training and experience of British schioohnasters
suit the requirements of our service very well.

“ Boys suitable for teachers do not offer freely for the
service of the department.”

He should think so. What encouragement did
they get when they were put aside as so much
merchandise ?

“But no difficulty has arisen during 1883 on this
acconnt. except that in some of the northern towns it
has been necessary to appoint adults to keep up the
numerical strength of the staffs, where pupil teachers
would have sufliced if available.”

Mr. FOOTE said he hoped the hon. member
was not going to take up the time of the Com-
mittee in reading the whole report.

Mr, ISAMBERT said it was very important.
The Inspector-General continued in his report :-~

“ Tt is found that ex-pupil teachers of our own train-
ing have not at first sufficient mental weight and
breadth of culture to take responsible positions and to
deserve the ewmolwments accruing, until they have
aeymired skill and experience for some years after
attaining to the rank of classified teachers; and as few
of them remain in the service until the regulations of
the department and the guality of their work permit ot
an increase to their salaries, it has been considered
necessary to send home for a supply of men, trained as
already mentioned, to 1ill some of the more important
assistantships which there are not young men under
the departinent fitted to ill."”
Now, the General Inspector might be a man of
the most consummate ability for his position,
but

The CHAIRMAN said he did not wish to
interrupt the hon. member, but it would be
better if he reserved any further remarks until
the next vote—that for the inspectors’ salaries—
came under consideration.

Mr. ISAMBERT said he would make his
remarks short and continue them later on. But
he wished to say that the inspector who penned
those remarks might be very well as an inspector,
but his sentiments were out of place altogether.
He ought to be in a wholesale warehouse selling
cheese, hides, and tallow, or importing general
merchandise. The inspector must be a free-
trader by profession, but he (Mr. Isambert)
was of opinion that when so many young men
were induced to enter into the profession as
teachers, and were then treated in the manmer
described, it was high time that the department
proposed establishing a training college, and gave
the young men an opportunity of acquiring their
professional qualifications in the colony. At
the next sitting of the Committee he would have
more to say on the subject.

The MINISTER I"OR PUBLIC INSTRUC-
TION said he did not know what the hon. gen-
tleman complained of. He surely did not com-
plain of having a sufficient number of teachers.
They must have the schools provided with
teachers, and when they had not sufficient
teachers in the colony they must get them
from ahroad, Fvery encouragement was given
to young men tu enter the profession here,
but there were not enough of them. The
hon. gentleman also complained that there was a
difference in the system of the inspectors. The
inspectors were individual men, and they had
their own individual character, and he (the

Minister for Public Instruction) thought
it would be very unfortunate if they
were all cast in the same groove. As long

as the instruction was the same, variety in
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detail was rather an advantage than otherwise.
The inspectors were not changed every year now,
ax they were at one time, Hardly any change, in
fact, had been made during the present year. His
uwn opinion was that it was just as well to change
inspectors tolerably frequently, especially when
the inspectors were more numerons than they had
Leen of late.  During this year and last year the
schools had not been properly inspected, simply
Lecause there were not enough inspectors.  This
vesr some of the schools would have to go alto-
wether without inspection.  There were not
enough inspectors to inspect all the schools in the
colony, and it would be his duty to ask for the
appointment of additional inspectors.  What the
Lo, wember had called attention to were by no
weans defects in the systemr of teaching.

The Hox. .J. M. MACROSSAN said that
one of the contentions of the hon. member for
Rosewood, to which the hon. gentleman had not
referved, was that they ought to establish a
training college in the colony instead of import-
ing teachers from the old country.  In his opinion
sufficient encouragement was not given to young
teachers to retain them in the department. They
conld get far hetter salaries outside of it, and, even
after having been trained as teachers, they left
the service as soom as they could, sceing that
there was no encouragement to them to remain
in the department. But as the hon., gentleman
intended to bring the question forward when the
proper vote was under discussion, he would
refrain from speaking further upon it till then,

The MINISTER IFOR PUBLIC INSTRUC-
TION said he scarcely thought it desirable to
establish a training college in the colony just yet.
An attempt in that direction was made some
years ago, but it was found unsatisfactory,
and he recommended its abolition. There was not
sufficient material in the colony for it. The
instruction given to teachers in the schools in
the large towns was quite as good as that which
they could get in a training college at present,
and some of the best of the younger teachers
in the service had been trained there. As
to remuneration, the Government had recognised
its insufficiency. If hon. members would look
at the vote for salaries to teachers they would
see a total increase of £10,000. Of that amount,
between £4,000 and £5,000 was actually made
up of increases to teachers’ salaries, the rest
being for the increased number of them.

Mr. T. CAMPBILIL said he regretted that
the Chairman had pulled up the hon. member
for Rosewood. That hon. member had quite
suflicient data to discuss the question upon ; and
before the Minister for Public Instruction passed
the vote it would have to be fully discussed.
The hon. member for Rosewood would not shirk
his duty in that matter.

The MINISTER FOR PUBLIC INSTRUC-
TION : Nobody wants him to.

Question put and passed.

On the motion of the COLONTAL TREA-
SURER, the Crnatraax left the chair, reported
progress, and obtained leave to sit again to-
Morrow,

PRINTING COMMITTEE.

Mr. FRASER, on behalf of the Speaker as
Chairman, brought up the eighth report of the
Printing Committee, and moved that it e
printed.

Question put and passed.

ADJOURNMENT.

The PREMIER, in moving the adjournment
of the House, stated that he proposed to proceed
with the consideration of the Istimates to-
MOTTOw.

The House adjourned at twenty-three minutes
1o 11 o’clock.

Questions without Notice.
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